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Pursuant to paragraph 4, Special Orders Ne, 142 Headquarters U, S
Army Training Group MZ;WI y g %o
n : » g I:g:thmdmiﬂudm&adtn

Mmﬂﬁhﬁu-nrthl&hﬂ:hpnnhﬂdﬂthhm
;hlhuroflmlm“iﬂ, 30, 31 October, 5, 6, 7, 10, 13, 16
9 November 1945. Among those present at the conferences were Vivencio

Phldttipim-d.tulmlt, San Luis, Mexico, and &
wnm,lﬂhﬂm“,huﬁn;uorlu;nldju.
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mtﬂlnfthmnulumnﬁoﬂthimnh. The details
of these two battles are not comsidered important enough to be included
in

this report. These encounters were considered significant by the United
cated the

desire of the people to fight the enemy
in conformity with the prineiples as set forth in the

On 29 Harch 1';;2‘ at the center boundary of the three Provinces of

Ecija, in a mangrove forest known as Batibat,
the official insuguration -f guerrilla units under the name Hukbalahap

tock place, At that time the organization comsisted of approximately five
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as civilian employees, and through cthers who served as cooks and mess
attendants for the Japamese. Information was also obtained through
eivilians living near Japanese imstallatioms. Sometime in 1944, the
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RUKBALABAP - Military Organisation and History of Development. (Contimued)

intelligence system was centralized with the ersation of the Intelligence
Division and & Communications Division as part of the Military Department.
Subsequent to the establishmemt of these two divisions all intelligence
operations were centralized. The Commmications Division operated a
courier system which rendered it possible for all squadroms to send their

intelligence reports to the Imtelligence Division for evaluation and
disseminstion to other units.

At the time of the actual inauguration of the Hukbalahap on 29 March
1942, five squadrons of one hundred men each were activated., They formed

three Provinces of Pampanga, Tarlse, and Nueva Ecija, Weapons consisted
of one hundred arms of various types not equally distributed among the
five squadrons. This unequal distribution is attributed to the fact that
there was a friendly competition among the five sguadrons in an effort to
propagate and form larger umits and that at the time weapons were secondary
importance. Squadromns 1 and 2 were organized and operated in the vieinity
of Candaba, Fampenga, Squadron 3 was organized and operated in the areas
from the foot of Arayat Nountain, Pampanga, to the North and West. Squad-
ron 4 was organised and operated in the area from San Luis, Pampanga, to
the vieinity of Bataan and the entire Manila Bay Area. Shortly after the
activation of the first five squadrons a unit which had beem organized in
the vicinity of San Fermando, Pampanga, requested recognition by the Hili-
tary Committee,. Recognition was granted and the unit was designated ag
Squadron 6, At the same time another umit was activated in the vicinity
of Lubao and Florida Blanea, was recognized, and designated as Squadrom 13.
mm::lu-lhlqmmmmmﬂoﬂuqum,ﬂmiﬁu
to deceive the enemy as to the actual number and strength of guer-
forees., From these original squadrons selected cedre were sent out
organize additional squadroms. As others were organised
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was held by Squadron Leaders, the Military Committes, and the Chairman of
the United Fromt. As a result of the conferemece five Militery Districts

were created for the three Provinees cf Pampanga, Tarlac and Nueva Ecija.

The geographical boundaries were defined not according to any given number
of squadrons per distriet, but rather according to the potential ability

mm_ﬁwum#ﬁtmw. A

striet Commander was appointed for each Military District. No given rank
was bestowed on these commanders at that time since it is a Huk theory that
ability and not rank is the gniding principle and that therefore rank is
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HUEBALAHAP - Military Organization and History of Development. (Continusd)
Jose Banal,

relatively unimportant. ! gt 1as commanded by
o Hilitary District 2 was commanded

by Felipa Culala, a woman, who was also head of the Warfare Department
under the supervision of Military Committee. She was later executed as
previously stated and was replaced by Delfin Malstumbaga. M{litary Dis-

was commanded by Pacifica Briones, now an officer in the Philip-
pins .Ehnmndjtﬂpdmltrﬂturudmlﬂermphmﬂhy
Eusebio Aquino. Militerv District L wes commanded by Abelardo Debu.
There was alsc a Sub-military District for Southern Luson commanded by a
man whose assumed name was Hashim, and whose real name is believe to be
Villegas. After the landing of Americen forces on Southern Luzon his
unit was attached to the 11th Airborne Division, United States Army, and
it is believed that Villegas is now in the Philippime Army.

From September 1942, to December 1942, the Hukbalahap engaged in
continuous operstions against the Japanese, During this period they
acquired additicnal arme through attacks on Jap garrisons, patrols, conveys,
and Philippine Consta s and by Narch 1943, they possessed over ko -
thousand weapons although as a result of these engagements they admit
having lost some previously possessed.

During March 1943, the Japanese took strong countermeasures to combat
the guerrilla activities of the Hukbalahap, The Japs employed tanks, heavy
' y artillery, and planes, and inflicted heavy casualties om the
hak, although they were mot successful in their attempt to clean up the
guerrillas, As 2 result of the losses suffered by the Hukbalahap its
forces were forced to adopt a "lie-low" policy until August 1943, except
in the Provinee of Pampanga, so that they eould reorganize, Rejuvenation
progressed rapidly botween August 1943, and December 1943, and there were
minor engagements with the enemy in far flung places. The Huk forces
expahded their somes of operations and pemetrated south as far as the
boundary of Bulacan and Rizal and to the north as far as the boundary of
Tarlac and Pangasinan,

In December, 1943, a reorganization of the overall commands was
effected, The five Military Districts and the Sub-military Command of
Southern Luzon criginally established in September 1942, were converted
to Regionsl Commands. Military Districts 1 and 5 were united and formed
Regional Commend 7 under the command of Abelarde Dabu, Military Distriet
2 became Command 2 under Capuli, Military District 3 became
hs:l Command 3 under the commend of Eusebio Aquino, Military Distriet
A @0 Regional Command 4 ecimanded by Jose De Leom, The Subemilitary
Distriet of Southern Lusem Regional Commapd 11 under Hashim, In
November 1944, Regional Commend 2 and Regional Command & were consolidated
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HUKBALASAP ~ Military Orgenization and History of Development. (Continued)

Colonel, (The Commanders of the former M Yitary Districts were not bes-
towed with any rank as stated previously.) These new Regional Commande
in turn formed Military Districts within their own areas, not be confused
with the former Mlitary Distriet which the Reglonal Commands replaeced.

From Januvary 1944, to September 1944, there was continued expansion
and strengthening of penmetration into arsas reached im the latter part of
1943, After the first American bombing of Central Luzon on 21 September
1944, the morale of the Japanese forces and collsborationists was low,
The Hukbealshap took advantage of this opportunity to engage in widespread
operstions, including politieal and economie warfare, sgainst the enemy.
They claim to have helped harvest the Fall crop and to have kept it from
falling into the hands of the enenmy.

From the Initial insuguration of the Hukbalahap in Merch 1942, until
December 1944, they claim to have had d1ffieculty in submitting intelligence
reports to A11ied Forces, They possessed no means of transmitting these
reports themselves and relied on USAFFE guerrilla units to send out their
reporis, sinece they have radlio contaet with Allied forces outside Lumon.
However, because of friction and misunderstanding between the Huk and
units they believe that their intelligence reports were not transe
or credited to them. It was not until late December 1344, that

be certain that their intelligence reports were being sent out.
an agent from the Allied Intelligence Bureau set up a radio
of the Huk Intelligence Division, located in Sam Juan,
e , and remained there for approximately one month,

the landing of Ameriecan forces om Luson many Huk units aided
1iberation of enmemy-held territory., In Central Luszon it is
the Huk completely liberated Tarlaec, (Tarlac), San Fernando
Cabanatuan(Nueva Ecija), and adjoining small towns prior to
of American forces in these areas and turned them over to the
their arrival. Huk forces also claim the liberation of
Crus on Southern Luson, and assistance in the liberation
prisoners of war from a Japanese prison camp in that area,
some Huk forces were fighting side by side with American forces
s ware engaged in mopping up operations, cleaning out small Jap
in the mais drive, S5Still other units were deactivated
mesbers returned to private life in February 1945, after the
of Iuis Taruc = Commander-in-Chief of the Hukbalahap, Castro
« a member of the Military Committee and GHQ, Sergio Cayanang -
and other leadera, During their imprisomment a tem=
_ iu;ﬂo-lhnmaﬂmum. When they were released from
 Septenmber 1945, Luis Taruc was agaln appointed Commander-in<Chief,
M Committee or Gemeral Headquarters still exists in a reserve
eapacity with Iuis Taruc as Chairpan and Compander-in-Chief,

The maximmn mumber of squadrons in existemce during the peak of the
erganization was sixty-seven with tem to twelve thousand active regulars,
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HUXBALAHAP - Military Organization and History of Development. (Continued)

A saximum of six thousand men could have been committed to battle at any
given time with an equel number in reserve, The total mumber of arms was
ene thousand, |

Mmﬁuﬂunrth!nnnmipinhlylﬂﬂﬂlanunm
units were desetivated and returzed to civilian life,

Rosters of warious units of the Hukbalshap are submitted herewith as
& group under imclosure 13, These rosters are made up according to the
actusl military structire of the Hukbalahap which differs in sowe respects
from U.S, Army organization, Squadrons and cowpanies are one and the same.
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mepbers of the Hukbalahap used assumed names soms of
indiceted as assumed, Time A1d not permli contacting each
name,
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individual to determine his correct .and the leaders eannot remember
the real mames of all those concerned, Some rosters contain the names of
efficers only but the names of enlisted men will be submitted later.. With

stories of their activitios in combat and some
; onal Command 7 contains four regiments. Reglonal
ment, and there are two in Regional Command 9. One
reeruited end processed from Regional Command 7
' the mumbers of Regional Command 11 on Southern

n have been processed under Villegas. There is a total of approximately
ten thousend members remsining. Roster of arms inventories are not. included
since many of the Huk records were taken by CIC. These rosters will be
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The Hukbalahap was a revolutionary army, bacause its prineiples of
on and discipline and basis for existence differ from those of
conventional srmies, Policital and military aspects wers Inseparable.
Their theories are better explained and defined in their own words in
inelosures 2, 3, and 4, of this repert.

- Tor several years before the outbreak of war the labor and peasant
group movement, which later formed the United Front, had been sternly
opposed by other groups such as the "CAWAL ng Kapayapsan" or Knights of
Peace® under the leadership of S. Balayat, them Provinelal Covernor of
l‘umﬂmhm of Communications in the Philippine Government,
the ng Bayan® or Enights of the Nation® (strong in Nueva Ecije),
the Falangiste Espancl under the leadership of Andres Soriano, and by

groups, The Communists and Socialists mingled with the peasant
lsbor groups in an effert to strenthen their own position, For this
resson the oppesition groups indulged in "red beiting®, and termed )l
labed and peasant groups as communistic, and exsrted every effort to break

« ¥ .
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The labor and

« These opposition groups were supposedly backed
in the Philippine Islands who feared that the
peasant groups, who claimed te have been demand-

living conditions for the poorer elass of labore
their interests in jeopardy.
"progressives” and the opposition groups

i1 .
i

However,
h as the Commu-
When the Commmist
Sayre after the outbreak
ly in this report) it was also

and peasant groups, who agreed to the poliecies set

or pelitieal be-

tand of the other groups as well

and demanding a United Fromt, it
who although opposed by the oppositiomists previously mentioned, were not

ioner

and no particular group suec
with the other groups and were considered
war effort. Since, through this memorandum,
s if the Communists were giving their
to be understood that all laber and peasani groups would

bor
mingled
support the

to High Commiss

referred to previous

rather than by any of the other groups, since the

« It was agreed that the memorandum should be sube
Therefore

Front was first organized in February 1942, it ie

Commmists and Socialists jJoined the movement.
wnavoidable due to the fact that the United Front called
pledging full support

a2 means of clarifying the s
it is elaimed that each particular group could have sent

vented from joining the movement.

L
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all groups regardless of race, eclor, creed,
a common enemy,

pre
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Unt
many

In short,
the same memorandum to High
unnecessary duplication,

support it was

also,

considered so radiecal.

Commissioner Sayre, but it would have been

Front. What opposition did exist was sponsored

It is claimed that actually some of the pre-war oppo-
Jspenese puppets who, before the war, were the most steadfast oppo-

In the early stages of Japanese occupation there was 1llttle opposition
of the Progressive elements.

sitionists joined the United

by the
nents

The United Fromt 4id not accept the "lie<low" poliey, exeept for a

Their Hukbalahap
who
Lt
nob
tted
only

slng.
Their actions were
ts
they
the

L
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- Differences and Misunderstanding with other groups (Continued)

where they would be sure of encoutering the least opposition and, sccording
to the Fukbalahap, it is in those arees that the final results indieste the
most Jap Since other guerrilla units resented the activities of
the Huk, on several occasions they went mo far as to ambush Huk units to
' The leaders of the Hukbalahap claim
their fm::ﬁﬁthu'gurﬂm forces were loe
made
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ved in such clashes
time to contact varims
leaders to negotlate agreements and solve differences. However, no contacts
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sue
that it was only in retalistion and self defense in order to wreak vengeance
for previcus offenses committed against them
units,

The leaders of the Hukbalahap elaim that frietion and differences
between their forces and other units would never have cecured had It. Col,
Thorps, U. S, Army guerrilla represenmtative, lived. In support of this
elain they desire to submit a copy of a memorandum they sent to Colonel
3 & copy of a jetter to Colonmel Thorpe dated 21 May 1942, a copy of
Colonel Thorpe's dated 2 June 1942, and a copy of the minutes of a
conferences held 5 and 7 July 1942, between representatives of the Hukba-
lahap and Colonel Thorpe's guerilla forcea. These documents are submitted
herewith as inclosures 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 respectively. After Colonel Thorpe's
death in August 1942, the {ndividusl guerrilla units, which he had besn
attempting to coordinate each went their respective ways, and coordination
was never accomplished; MNany of these guerrilla umits were under American
commanders and were known as USAFFE guerrilla forces originally under the
overall command of Lt. Colomel Thorpe until his death, These forces in-
cluded the USPIF or United Stated Philippine Island Forces under Colonel
Merril, The Lusen Guerrilla Forces commanded by an American named Ramsey
(rank unknown), the ROTC Humfer Cuerrilla Porces under one Terry Magtangol,

: ) PQOG or President Queszon’s Own Guerrilla
- mz’ g - - s ;

E
:
8
:

i

¢
]
;
b
E



{Continued)
With Other Groups.
Hisunderstandings

- Differences and

3.3,00 Lo deftiad: 11 o by
TR T mmmmmwmmmmmmwmwwmm _mm &
mmmmﬁ“mmﬁmmmm.mmmmwmmﬁwf I ik
mmmmmm.mmmmwmmwmwwmmmmmmmﬂmmmmmwmmem“uma THE
mgmmmmmmm, E...Mmmmawwmmwmm.....MMME A i
,mmmmmmﬁhwmﬂmjmwfmm.m:mm; e sl
mmmmm.:m. A mmmmwummmwmm M i3 THE
mmwmmﬁmﬂ%ﬁ_mmmmmmﬁm“u ik
i ailipanin )
mmm“mmmew WWMMWWM mmmmm mummmmMmmmmm wmm m mu-
FWH] T {318 kg + m m
il H r,i Ak
mmmm-dmw.m mm mMnMW wm m dm me 2 mmh
mmmmm mm“mum Z5d3a¥

Authority NN D $43078

~— DECLASSIFIED \_




Auoyiny

i

J
adIISSvIDAa

e _—_r

§/0

I

HUKBALAHAP - Differences ani Misunderstandings with Other Groups. (Continued)

aided the Japs and puppets by selling their goods to them, often at a loss
in fear of displeasing the puppet suthorities and the Japanese. In such
cases where they could prevent such transactioms 1t is claimed that members
of the Huk did so, They admit having destroyed entire crops and im some
cases they harvested them themselves to keep from the Japs., Threshing
machines and other farm meschinery were destroyed because their owners were
allegedly playibg into the hands of the Japs who would wait until these
machines produced what they were intended to produce and would then appear
on the scens and seize the products or force the producers to sell st low
cost, The Huk fighters felt that they were justified im destroying such
sources of supply %o the Japanese, However, before they actuslly destroyed
such property they claim that they tried to persuads the owners to hide it
from the Japs. In cases where this was not done they destroyed it so as to
rendar it useless even if it did involve destructionm of private property.

In clarification of the stand of the Hukbalahap and cause for differences
& memorandum was cent to Gepersl MecArthur and President Osmena by the GHQ
of the Hukbalahap, A copy of this memorandum is submitted herewith as
inelosure 10-

INTERNAL DISSERSION

It is adnitied that discord existed within the Fukbalahap., WNost of the
differences were minor, Only three cases of meajor diffieulties ars cited.

There is the case of Felipa Culalas, the woman leader of the Warfare
Department who was executed because she was adjudged to have been serving
only her own interesta instead of those of the cause,

In the case of Pacifica Briomes, former Commander of Military Distriet
3, and now an officer in the Philippine Army, the Huk adjudged her as a
traitor to the cause, In instances where her units were detailed %o hijack
trueks bringing supplies to the Japs, and in cases where they were ordered
Lo destroy crops and machinery to keep them from Jap hands. Briones sccepted
bribes and didn'i carry out her missions, She was aceunsed of capitalising
for her own personal gain and was summoned mamy times by the CHQ and told
to mend her ways. Instead of complying with the rsquest of the GHQ she
resigned from the organizatiocn and tried to promote hard feelings among
members of the Yok, No agressive action was taken against her,

In the case-of Bamal they hold mo grudges. He was always considered as
an outstanding leader and during the Japamese oeccupation was one of the most
active members of the Huk, They regret the faet that he, of his own initiae
tive, disarmed some of his units ard formed his own regiment for induetion
into the Philippine Army without the common comsent of the other leaders.

In this they see what they term an inmocent vietim of the CIC's attempt to
ecreate disunity in the Hukbalahap. They do not dispel the pessibility &t
some of the lesser leaders mey still bear grievances against Banal, pr 1y
' inelude them in his plans., However, the most prominent
leaders such as Tarue and Alejandrino claim to be on friendly terms with

- 1] =
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HUKBALAHAP - Internal Dissenmsion (Continued)

In various other cases leaders were replaced from time to time by others
deemed to be more efficient and capsble, Such actions sometimes caused
hard feelings among those replaced but there were no major disturbances

from this cause.

POLTTICAL ASPECTS

In any report on the activities of the Hukbalahap its political aspects
cannot be excluded, It wes an armed force with a political motive which was
considered equally important with actually military action against the
Japanese, It was the strong arm of the United Fromt which foresay possi-
bilities of strengthening its position during the Japanese occupation inm
the hope that they would eme day be driven eway. When that day would come
the United Front could say that through the Hukbalahap it had proven itself
to be one of the foremost militant groups against agression and dictator-
ship as well as to be onme of the most anxious to see the return of democracy
to the country, Through the Hukbalahap they fought openly against collaboe
ration and did not recognize the puppet govermment as the legal government
of the Philippines, They hoped that through their sections they would even-
tually be gble to bargain for better living conditions for the peasanis and
laborers, a goal which they had been siriving to attain for many years
before the VAT . g

They have been accused by opposition groups to be demanding the abolil-
tion ef large private land holdings im Central Luzom, to be distributed
equally emong the people, This they demy emphatically stating that there
are mamy land ownmers who were prominent members of the Hukbalahap and the
United Front and still support the movememt., They claims to be asking only
a better share of the profits for the peasants and laborers. They don'%
think that such a demand is umreasonable and that by comparison they are
asking for approximately ome-half of what similer movements in other demo=
eratie countries such as the United States have obtained by demand in the past.

refer to the presemt economic and sccial structure in Central
Luzon as feudal serfdon, where a few possess all the holdings and ihe masses
are their slaves. They are ecampaigning for the abolition of this feudal
gerfdom and recognition of the laborers and peasants as brother workers with
gapltal and management rather than their slaves. They deaires to correet the
state of 11literaey and ignorance now clalmed to exist among the masses in
that area, HMany of those who were members of the Hukbalahap are illiterate
and many do not speak Emglish, In gemeral it 18 admitted that many of those
who were members and constitusents of the Hukbalahap and the United Fromt are
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HUKBALAFAP - Polifical Aspects - (Continmued).

The results of meetings and conferences with the people are not alweys too
effective because of the alleged state of illiteracy amnd ignorance of many
of them, They admit difficulty in impressing many of the people that law-
lessness hinders rather than helps the cause, Some are in dire need of .
food and clothing and in desperstlion they procure these commodities by any
available means, fair or foul. The leaders emphasize the fact that they
entirely disapprove such actions and do not attempt to justify them in any
ways. However, they feel justified in pointimg ocut such actions as glaring
examples of the product of the feudal caste spetem, claiming that granted
better living conditions and opportunities they would be no dissatisfaction
among these people &nd that incidents of lawlessness would never ocour,

Although they have not been openly accused of being anti-American they
claix that the opposition does not credit them as being pro-American. In
coentradiction they assert that thelr movement considers the democratic form .
of govermment in the United States as the only acceptable form of government, -
and one to be esmlated by any freedom~loving people. They attribute the
misinterpretation of thedir attitude toward the democratic form of govern-
ment in the United States to the fact that they do admit bearing grievances
toward certain Americam interests in the Philippine Islands and accuse them
of exploitation for théeir own persomal gein without regard for the welfare
of the people. The opposition, whom they eclaim to be backed by the big
interests and cpportunity to seek in their attitude toward these interests
an opportunity to propagandize and label their movement as enti-American.
They emphasize stromgly that they do mot desire the liguidation of foreign
interests and capital. They claim that in fact this capital is necessary
for the development of the economic seeurity of the people, and that all
they desire is a better share in the profits enjoyed by these interests.

In rebuttal to eccusations branding them as anti-Commonwealth Govern-
pent they maintain they have always, and always will profess great faith
in the form of government but have a shaken confidence in some of its present
administrators whom they accuse of having been colleborationiste during the
Japanese occupation. They cam see no justification in retaining certain of
the present govermment officials who collaborated openly or secretly with
the Japanese. These individuals are accused of having been the greatest
thorn in the aide of the progressive movement during the war and they fear
that through thelir retention in office attempts will be made to suppress the
labor and psasant movements, They desire only to see the ougter of these
sertain of ficials by democratie processes of lew and justice and replacement
with more capable leaders who can be relied on to serve for the betterment of
the intérest of the people.

~ They acknowledge the possession of many weapons among their people.
m:m'mﬂhhdutw continued possession of these weapons, A feeble
attempt at justification is presented in their argument thet the people have
the right to protect themselves against murder and bamditry. The leaders
luuMmemwln-m“mtudm they ars their
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HUKBALAHAP - Political Aspecte (Continued).

legal property because they were obtained im battle or by persomal donatlom
and that mome were supplied by the U. 8. Army, (It is knom that there many
U. 8. Army weapons in their pessession.) They do not intend te comply with
Proclamention Number 17, promulgated by the President of the Philippine Come
monwealth, demanding that all arms be surrendered. The deadline for the
Province of Pampanga is 23 November 1945. The faet that they insist on re~

these arms has cause them to be distrusted and accused of planning
eivil war, In refutation they demand that this sitvation be adjudged logical-
ly. Admitiing that they do possess fire arms they claim that common sense
dietates that 1% would be suiéidal for them to imstigate armed revolt against
lawful authority. With the few thousand weapons they possess they couldm'$
attempt to compete against even the Philippinme Army forces who are much
better trained and equipped and outnumber them many times,

Admitting that there were Gommunist elements in the Hukbalahap they can
not fully understand the reason for so much opposition t¢ those elements.
Their argument is that Russia was and is an ally of the United States and
that she was given lead-lease. Therefore they claim that the United States
tolerated Communism sinece it aided the country where that movement was bora
and developed. Such being the case they think it incomsistent to try %e
suppress those elements having Communistie learnings especlally sinmoe they
aided in the war against Fascism and agressor mations, In presenting this
argument they do not mean to endorse the policies of the Communists but

merely attempt to eliminate their presence in the organization as a basie
for prejudice toward the entire movement. They state that a close study of
the attainments in countries were Commmism has flourished reveals thst in
those countries the people have gained only half the privileges and opportunie
ties enjoyed by the citizens of demooratie mations, Therefore, they argue
that is it i= absurd to brand them as commumistic when they realize that so
much more can be obtaimed under the demosratic system of government, It is
stated further that Communists in the Philippines are not Communistic in the
strict sense of the word as applied to Communists in Soviet Russia.

They profess profound faith in the Four Freedoms proclaimed in the
Atlantic Charter but they claim that failure to alleviate conmditions on
Centrel Luson has betrayed the intentions of applying the Four Freedoms to
all people. Their proteat is that for their people there is still no free=-
dom from fear and from want and that freedom of assembly is frustrated at
every opportunity by raids on their mass meetings.

The United Front movement is no longer known as such, It has been
absorbed into movement kmown as the Demecratic Alliance with membership
throughout the Philippine Islands. Membership is obtained thwough indi-
vidual application only. Members of the United Fromt were admitied as
individuals and not as a group.

The name Hukbalahap is misapplied when referred to as a political party.
The name hag stuck because of its political activities in the United Fromt
during the war, The claim is that actually the Fukbalahap no lomger exists
as such since it was a "People's anti-Japanese Army" and ceased to operate
when Japan was defeated, The GHJ exists at presemt in a reserve capacity flor
the purpose of settling the questiom of recognition es 2 medium %o represent
the members im this quest., At such time as a decision may be reached relative
to recognition the CHQ will cease to functiom entirely.
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HUEBALAVAP - Grievances (Continued)

Colonel Castaneda and Govermor Chioco admitted that in gemeral the newpaper
storiss are false and of no account and that if they believed these reports
" ¢he leaders of the Fuk would not be free mem today. Colonel Gastaneda
admitted in fact that there 12 no proof against the Hukbalahap with relation
to illegal mcts. He encouraged the leaders in their right to hold meetings
in hehalf of the campaign for better living conditions so long as they are
kept within the bounds of law and order. Colonel Castameda stated, however,
that in some instances the speakers are fostering the commission of 1llegal
acts, especially concerning the surrender of arms, Such speakers must be
purged and representatives of the Huk agreed to take necessary steps., Be-
canse classes are held im the barrios to correct the state of illitaracy
and ignorance of the people the Huk spokemen protested that due to the
existence of these classes they are accused of sowing the seeds of civil
war among their people. They asserted that such accusation is a malicious
falsehood. Govemmor Chioeo and Colémel Castanada agreed that the sponsoring
of such classes iz legal and to be encouraged provided that they are held
for the reason claimed. They stated further that they do not belleve these
¢lasses are beimg used as a fromt with am ulterior illegal motive and that
1f they suspeeted such a motive classes would have been disrupted long ago.
The undersigned, having been present during the latter part of the conference
observed that im gemeral a spirit of friendly cooperation prevailed among
those present, : |

|
On 15 November 1945, a celebration commemorating the amnniversery ef
the Philippine Commomwealth was held im San Fernmando, Pampanga, Represen=
tatives of the Hukbalahap participated im the celebration and offered @
resolution promising cooperation im the preserevation of law and order.|
copy of this resolution is submitted herewith as inclosure.ll. '=

o | ".15 i
The political situation has beem covered herein only because it is)|
inseparable from the militery activities of the Hukbalahap in the past ||
and accounts for much of the differences and friction between that orga- |
nization and other. 2

It 1s to be remembered that the faregoimg report on the Hukbalahap is
the story as presented by its leaders in defemse and clarification of thelr

- |':r'

The lsaders presemtly do not seem to have the ability to comtrol all
individusls in the masses they represent, especislly with referemee to the
surrender of arme, They condemn the unlawful acts committed But seem umable
to take comstructive action to prevent recurrences, However, in all pro
bility the lssders are felling the truth when they claim to have mo prier
knowledge pal acts but learn of them only after the commission of
such acts, mmwmmﬂudmﬂrﬁm-mhnﬁb
is responsible are reluctant to admit such lmowledge because of fear of
refalistion by those accused, This is perheps the main reason why lawful
authority emcounters difficulty im apprehending violators of law and order,
This does not mecessarily mean that these criminals are former members of
the lﬁﬂllllhl}.
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nuéumr - Conclusion. (Continved)

The Hukbalahap was a fusion of all elements, good and bad, Undoubtedly

this organisation was very strong im Central Luzon, but meny of its supperters
were probably foreed imto the movement by threats and aided merely to protect

themselves. Mamy people, innocent or otherwise, suffered persomal loess be-
cause of the activities of the Hukbalshap.

The determination to retaim arms is probably for the purpose of bargain-
ing for recognition in return for their surrender.

Disregarding the political activity and present disturbed conditions
which may or may not be attributed te former members of the Hukbalahap and
considering only the military activities its services were of value in
routing the enemy from Cemtral Luzom. In terms of value in dollars and
cents and American lives saved the work of the Hukbalahap compares favorably
with that of other guerrilla umits throughout the Philippine Ialands.

It is recommended that the Hukbalahap be recognized as a legitimate
guerrilles umit with the reservation that such recognition be granted only
after the surrender of all arms now in the possession of its members regard=-
less of whether all members now holding arms receive recogmition. It is

further recommended that of the 12,000 members cnly two regimsnts be recog-
nized and adjusted to comform with U. 3. Army T/0 & E,

Without making any commitments, the undersigmed has informed the
leaders of the Hukbalshap of the requirement demandimg total surrender of
all arme and ammunition as a prerequisite for recognition.

EDMON P, RYAN
st Lt., FA

Contact Team Leader
A1l Ineclosures withdrawn

and filed this Hgs,

- 17 =
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\ _} ~ Report on Soriano's lst Independent Guerrillas
1 August 1947

1. 1st Lt Kenneth H, Neubauer examined the unit history and interviewed
members of the Soriano's lst Independent Cuerrillas, 4o determine whether the
present date of recognition of this unit should be revised. BSoriano's lst
Independent Cuerrillas, were recognized hy letter, Hq. USAFFE, FEPA 370.64,
dated 1 April 1945. The effective date of recognition was 9 Jen 1945,

2, ALIECED HISTORY: (See attached unit file)

3. FINDINGS: 8. The following parinﬁl were interviewed and
their statements are reflected in the findings:

Marcello Soriano C.0. Soriano's Ind. urlna
Antonio Colonge Ex.0, * "

b, The subject unit was corcamnized on 12 Sept 1942 by Marcello
Soriano, The alleped area of operations of this unit were in the muniecipa-
11ty of Rosario, La Union. The orzanization was completely independent of
any other suerrilla umits, The claimed strength of the unit in 1942 was
300 men. In 1943, and 194 1t decreased to 200 men. In January 195 at
the time of its attachment to the 43rd and 33rd Divisions, its strength
was avnrroximetely 125 men.

Purported sctivities of the unit during the occupation are as
follows:

1942 end 19431 a. Drilling of the men
6. Instructing the men in militery subjects
d. Sketching of Japanese gun emplacenente

19441 Same sctivitles as 1llsted shove, plus obtaining information
on the Japanese fortifications on the road to Basulo.

When questioned why the unit strength dropped from 300 men in 1942
to 140 men in 1945, it was stated by Soriano and Colonge that the men lost
interest in the guerrilla movement and decide to abandon it, It is apparent
that a well orsanized unit 4id not exist in the years of 1943 and 1944. The
elain of holdlng drills, meetings, and gatherinz the men topether to instruct
them on military subjects seems a remote possibllity., Rosario La Union is
& city of six to seven thousand population, The Japanese garrisons in
Rosario totaled 30,000 men, Rosario was an important and highly secretive
installation of -I.'.rm Japanese, The drilling and training of a zroup of :
murrillu in the midst of 30,000 enemy soldiers, and at a highly secretive

s 18 a very remote punihﬂity. In -dditian to this, a claim of guer-
rilll achtivity 48 not warranted because of meetings and ullamd training by
this unit. The unit C.0. claims that sketches were made of Japanese gun
emplacements in Rosario. When asked what was done with these sketches
Soriano stated that they were given to the liberation forces "after" they
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. arrived in Rosario, In other words, sketches that were made between 1942
and 1944 were kept until the libteration forces had already neutralized the

area, No aptempt had been amde to send the-sketihes out through a higher

oversll command so that they would have been of some value to the U.S,
forces previous to the landing,

Soriano and Colenge stated that guerrills megbers in thelr
organization lived et home, and follewed civilian ococupations, Sixty

pen from the unit worked as laborers for the Japanese, The rest of the
men were farmers,

The C.0. elaims to have onr® man woimded in action, and a ntmber
of men that died im the line of duty. The man that was WIA, enraged a
Japanese officar who in turn cut off thes pan's ear with a sumarl sword.
No mention is made that the attack ccoured because ths man was suspected
of guerrilla activities, The men that died in the line of duty were..
working for the Japanese, Sorianc stated thet the Japamese did not furnish -
gufficient rations to the detriment of the health of the laborers, and
by this ection many of them contracted diseases and later dled, It is
woell known fact that many pecple contracted diseases that subsequently

osused death during the occupation., This in itself i not & basis for
claim a guerrilla,

4. POLITICAL ASPECTS:

a. This nnit does not appear to have eny peliticel asplrations
or affiliations, -

8. FECOMENDATIONS: It 1a recormepded that the Sorianc's lst

Independent Cuerrillas be not favorably considered for revision of its
prasent date of recognition.

- KENNETH H. NEUGCAUER
1st Lt CAC



1, 1lst Lt Imﬁhlﬂ., Heubauer proceeded to Lupao, Nuewva Eecija
during 1947, to investigate the Filipino Attachment to Squadron 339,

2. ALIECGED HISTORY:s (See attached unit file)
3. FINMDIRGS:

8. The following persons were interviewed snd their statements
reflscted in the findings:

1st Lt Hipolite F, Vengaro C0, Filipino Attachment Sdq.399"
2nd Lt Alfredo de Guzman Platoon Leader
2ud Lt Jose C, Mendoza s .
5 3gt Aurelio Reymo Unit Membar
| = Sgt Hermaso Martines . "
3 B 1st Sgt Eladora Rosarie » ¥
< E Cpl Florentino Vengaso " "
P 2 Pfe Simplicioc Alcantra . "
’ E . By Resord of service wes not substantiatsd by sufficient accep-
= table evidence., The subject unit, the Filipino Attachment to Sguadren 399,
S was one of the reserve umit of the LGAF, Squadron 399, under the command
l =2 of Lim Lam Beng, has been granted partial rscognition as a cuerrilla unit.

The conmanding officer of the Filipino Attachment, (unrecomiszed
members) , It Vercazo, cleims his men were attacked te the 25th Division
during the liberation, When Vengago was ssked for attachment papers to

| support this statemsnt he could not produre them, nor could any other

- members of the ,unit produce attachment orders. When asked as to whether
the recognired mowbers of 399 Sqdn hed attschment papers, Vengazo affirmed
this in the pesitive., It avoears Strange that tinit commanders of the 25th
Division gave attachment papers to only half of the Squadron.

The investigating team believes that this unit was inactivated .
&5 per order of Capt WeKénsie (Incl #1) and that these menm sre tryiag to
gain recognition on the hesis of the active members of Squadron 399, The
unit history (Incl #2) stetes that because of lack of arms the squadron
was disbanded. Another epecial order from Hq LOAF (Inel #3) sent to
8quadron 399 estates that reserve squadrons are to be disbanded,

Jose Mendoga who was platoon leader of the Becond platoon of the
subjeot organization steted the unit stayed at Pantabangan, lueva Eeija
for two years, Pantabangan was an isolated area in the mountains arnd the
neareet Japerese garrison was Rigal, Nueve Ecija. It is a known fact that
guerrilla units came to this area becsuse of its remotness Trom Jananese
garrisons. These units came here to "take a rest", A statement to the
effect that the unit stayed at Pentabancan for twe years indicetes it never
was an active guerrills wmis, | .

N
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Hermaso Martines who alleged to be a platoon sergeant, when
questioned, did not know of what platoon he was a member, who the platoon
was, nor any men in the platoon. In fact none of the members inter-
viewed knew what their duties were or who their commanders were,

The investigating officer believes that roster submitted by Lt
Vengaso is a "padded" roster., A memorandum sent to Lt Vengazo by Capt
McKensie (Incl 4)states LGAF Hq wanted the men originally on the roster
to be submitted for approval, It is apparent that Lt Vengasmo added quite
a fow "1945 guerrillas" to his roster. Lt Vengaso states in hie reply to
Capt HoKensis (Incl 5), that his 1945 enlistments are not marked by an "x*
(Inol 6)s A1l other men on the roster with an "x" after their names are
the original members of the Filipino Attachment to Squadron 399, The total
of this unit then would be 25 men and mot 82 as now claimed, Lt Vengazo's
own statement that the men not marked on the roster with an "x" were
enlisted in Jamuary 1945 (Inel 5), yet on the roster submitted for recoge
nition, (Incl 7)it is claimed all mem joined the unit in 1942 and 1943,
It 1s apparent that a lot of tampering with the rosters in this unit has
been done previous to submission for recognition,

It is the investigating teams' belief that the unit was never
active as a guerrilla organisation. This conclusion is brought about by
the lack of knowledge of the members regarding their unit's activities,
plus a lack of arms, Finally, evidence is in sbundance o indicate that
w“mmthmhrmmmnﬂmﬂ%ﬂmhﬂuu
simply added these names to gain recognition for them,

6. The unit was not maintained factorily in the field in
opposition to the enemy. Statements made unit members that the
organization stayed in Pantabangan, Nueva Ecija, is conclusive evidence
to show that the unit did not oppose the Japanese, Pantabangan is inaccesg-
sable over six months of the year because of floods, The Japanese did not
have a garrison nearer than Rizal, Nueva Ecija and only occasionally sent
a few men to Pantabangan to check up on the town's activities,

d. Activities did not materially contribute to the eventual
defeat of the enemy. This unit spent most of its time in an area where
there were no military activities. This unit was a reserve squadron,
unarmed, and therefore did not engage the ememy forces, |

@+ Performance of the unit did not indicate adequate control by
its Commanding Officer (Inel 8), It is apparent the men were not fully
trained and under the control of its leaders, Officers of the unit did
not know their duties, nor know the men under them, a definite indication
of lack of contrel by the unit officers,

f. Ranks of members was considered toohigh for the actual u\fl.n
of the command, |

g. Unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity, This
unit was a reserve element of the 399 sg « There was no supporting

o R.a
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evidence presented that it had any activity against the Japanese. Members
of the unit lived in areas devold of military activity, and they also

continued their civilian pursuits, with a resultant that they did not
support suerrilla activities continmuosly. |

hs Major Robert B, Lapham, Overall Commander of LGAF, stated
that Squadren 399, under the command of Capt Lim Lang Beng was an active
guerrilla squadron from 1 November 1944.

i. No useful purpose will be accomplished by further investiga-
tion of this unit, Al) worthy members have been recognized and the casual-
ties sre not worthy of recognition,

4o EQLITICAL ASPECTS:

This unit does not appear to have any political affiliations or
aspirations,

5. COUME :

1% is recommended that with the exception of 70 members previously
recognized from Squadron 399 (LGAF), the Filipino Attachment teo Squadron

399 consisting of 82 members, be not faverably considered for recognlition.

KENNETH H. NEUBAUER
1st Lt CAC
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“Tat Yaeuns Dlvision. FATY
30 July 1947

l. l1lst Lt Kenneth H, Neubauer investigated the unit files,
report of investigation, and unit history of the Phantom Com-
pany, 3rd Regiment, 1st Lagura Division, FAIT, to determine
whether or not the recognized portion of the Phantom Company,
deserves revision of its present recognition dates. The
Phantom Company, 3rd Regiment, 1st Laguna Division, FAIT, was
recognized in a strength of 108 by letter Headquariers USAFFE

FEPA 370,64, dated 1 April 1945, The effective dates of recog-
nition were from 24 Feb - 22 July 1945,

2. HISTORY: (See attached unit file).
3. FTIIDINGS:

a. The subject unit was organized on 10 May 1943,
by Rayrundo Ansag. It was initially under the overall command
of Col Hugh Straughn, and operated in the vicinity of Calamba
Laguna. After the death of Col Ansag, the unit's CO, in Febru-
ary 1945, Eaj Crispin M. Penid, the executive officer of the
Phantom &unpnny, became the commanding officer.

The Phantom Company had 108 men recognized from 24 Feb 1045 -
26 July 1945 for thelr activities with the 11th Airborne Division.
The remainder of the unit which was not attached (169 officers
and men) was not favorably considered for recognition by Lt
Donald E. Potter, formerly of the Guerrilla Affairs Division.

Previons to the liberation the unit's activities congisted
of a few minor engagements with the enemy forces. Following
are the claims of the unit's activities by Maj Penid, the unit CO:

a, On the 27th of July 1943, six men raided Bilibid
prison at Sta Cruz, laguna, There were no Japanese casualtles
and no casuslties in the Phantom Company.

. During October 1943, six men cut communication
wires from Calamba and Bucal Barrio,

¢. On the 4th of September 1944, three men raided the
house of a Japanese officer by the name n} Hokiama. No casual-
ties on either side. (It is noted that between Oct 1943 and
Sept 1944, this unit boasts no aetivities).

d. On the 2nd of October 1944, eight men raided an out-
post in Calamba. There were no casualties in this undertaking.
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e« On the 17th of October 1944, seven men ralded the

hg:u of a Japanese officer; no casualties were incurred on either
Slde.

f« On the 31st of December 1944, the headquarters of
the Phantom Company was raided by Japanese and Makapilis, The

ugit claims seven enemy wounded and one casualty suffered on its
side.

g« On the 3rd of January 1945, a patrol of 16 men
encountered 25 Japanese. <the unit claims that two Japanese were
killed, and that the Phantom Company suffered no casualties,

he Penid also claims the unit was active in propaganda
and intelligence activities from October 1943, to September 1945,

The following facts have been taken from the individual
questionnaires of the members of the Phantom Company, and dis-
interested civilians who knew of the activities of the unit.
These facts refute the claims of the unit commanding officer.

Eﬁfﬁi&;‘%ﬁiiggiﬁigliﬁinj (member of the Phantom Com-
pany since p utista does not e¢laim to have been an

active guerrilla in 1943, During December of 1944 he claims to
have been in one engagement., Bautista alsc claims two engage-

ments in January 1945, There were two enemy soldiers contacted
on each of these incidents,

I%Q_LjTglfﬁ;gg_Egnigj (member of the subjeet unit
sinece 1943) Lt Penid was not an active guerrilla in 1943.
In December 1944, the Makapilis raided the Hq of the Phantom

Company; Lt Penid was present dur!ng this inecident. No claimed
action against the Makapilis in the raid is made by 1t Penid,

%EQ"LI_Ennfé*ETE%Et} (platoon leader in the Phantom
Company since Sept 3 ot does not elaim to have been ac-
tive in 1943, His activities in 1944 consisted of "one" engage-
ment, .

Wﬂg_{ggg&ﬂ: (member of the Phantom Company
Since 1943 cuton doeg not claim to have been an active guer-
rilla in 1943, Jucuton stated he was in one engagement against
the Makapilis in 1944,

Emw%: (a member of the unit since 1943)
Et:ggiiln s no guerrilla activities in 1943, and one engagement
n ®

,%;1:%5%_§§119_E¥5%g; (a member of the Phantom Compar
since 194 Fucum stated, "I never was engaged in any ac:
tivities against the enemy." \

%;%15_%§;§5¥E, Justice of the Peace in Calamba Laguna:
Carreon state a e members of the Phantom Company earried \

D b
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on their eivilian occupations, Carreon did not hear of the unit
being active in 1943, In late 1944 or early 1945, Carreon
stated t he heard that the headguarters of the Phantom Com-
pany was ralded by the Makapilis or the Japanese. There is no

mention that the Phantom Company was active against the enemy
in these incidents.

. E*niﬁlﬂgﬁ"f%ihﬁﬁﬂ a dentist in Calamba Laguna: Alihan
had no knowledge © 5 ntom Company being active in 1943,
;%igfn stated that the Phantom Company had one engagement in

The above excerpts from individual questionnaires reveal
that with the exception of a very few minor engagements with
the enemy in late 1944, this organization remained passive and
inactive. Activities subsequent to late 1944 are not of a
nature nor number to warrant revision for that period.

The claims of intelligence activities made by Maj Penid
are not substantiated by sufficient evidence, The results of
intelligence activities are questionable as no direct results
are known to have been derived from same. Dissemination of news
(propaganda) of the day, and keeping up the morale of the people
cannot be classified as guerrilla activity. .

FProm the evidence subm!tted on the activities of the Phantom
Company, the unit has no basis for revision of dates. It Potter's
report of investigation (Tab A) concurs in that the unit does

not present sufficient evidence to warrant revision of its recog-
nition date.

4, PO L CTS3t This unit does not appear to have
and politic iliations or aspirations.

Se 0 10ES: It is recommended that the Phantom
Company, 3rd Regiment, lst Laguna D#wision, FAIT, be not favor-

ably considered for revision of its present recognition date.

KENNETH H, NEUBAUER
1st Lt., CAC

T DECLASSIFIED
- Authority NND3 %3078
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I have welsomed the appertunity to write about the guerrilla phase of
Colonel Claude A, Thorp's 1ife history and I am also mware that it is an
oppartunity to render honor and justice to the memory of a great man, a
hero and a martyr, Nuch as my misgivings are that my inexperience and in-
adequate technique of writing and my poor command of the English language
may not help to do him justice, mevertheless, 1 am confident that I have
firet hand knowledge of the truths and facts and that I am determined %o
stick to them in the narrative. I know the revelation of the truth will
redeem his name from obscurity and once those who should know will know

;Mt his magnificient sacrifice they will mever fail to pay hiw the right
omage ,

In the year 1940, I was appointed seeretary to Colonel C, A, Thorp
who was then the Provest Marshal in Fort Stotsenburg. Even when the war
broke on December 8, 1941, I stuck to my job so that when we were ordered
%o evacuate from Fort Stotsenburg, I moved to Porac with the Colonel on
December 24, 1941, where we met Colomel Mario Pamintusn of the Northwest
Pampangs Wilitary District who was then a Special Agent of the Provest
Marshal from Porac, Colomel Thorp, myself and other office psrsommel, im-
mediately moved to Hermosa, Bataan, and stayed there up to Jammary 7, 1942,
on which date we moved to Bagac and Colomel Thorp continued his work as
Provost Marshal of the Northern Luzon Forces under General King. While in
Bagae, Colonel Thorp revealed to me that he had submitted the idea of organi-
zing guerrilla units to Gemeral Mac Arthur, On Janusry 19, 1942, Ceneral
HacArthur called him for a conference, but it so happened that Cel Thorp
had just received a bullet wound on his left leg so that he was forced to
send Capt., David Miller in his instead, and the next day, Capt. Miller
brought him his suthority to rrganisze guerrillas and a written memorandum
signed by Adjutant Genmeral Casey.

On Jamuary 27, 1941, we left Bagac, Batean, for Porac as our scheduled
destination is Mt. Pinatubu, With us were four American Officers and nine
American enlisted men, The four other officers were Lts, Lapham, Cushing,
McGuire and Capt, Miller, but Capt Miller was cut from ue in Little Baguio
and he was mever able to rejoin us, All the officers ineluding the Colomel
were armed with tommy guns and the onlisted men with Garands, Springfields
and pistols. Including some Filipinos, there were nineteen men and we were
two women when we started our adventurous journey thru the Bataan and
Zambales mountains., It took us more than forty days before we reached our
destination and during this period we encountered all kinds of diffioulties,
shortage of food, water and guides, and most of the time the opem sky for
our shelter, In the mountains of Orani, we met some civiliane who volunteered
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routine with the Jape to earry foodstuff to Olongapo late in the aftermoonm.
Colonel Thorp called the officers and men to a conference and they decided to
intercept the food of the Japs, so that they also agreed om a plan of opera-
tion, The Colonmel divided the men inte three groups. He with Lt. Lapham

and some men the natives, Lt, Charles Chushing and Lt, MeGuire would take care
of the dynamite and the cargadores, The fighting lasted for more than twe
hours, As the colonel suspected that fresh reinforcement of Jape were brought
in, he ordered a retreat and they retreated to our hiding place. The Colomel
was pleased when he found out that he had hot lost a single man and he was
sure that they were able %o kill many Jape. As soon as the colomel reached
our hiding place with the men, we heard big guns around us so he ordered that
we got moving and we walked until four o'eclock in the morning, When almost
everybody could not walk any further we halted and rest. After taking our
breakfast that morning, we started walking again, but two of the men were too
weak to walk we had to lsave them to the care of some civilianms,

When we reached Florida-Blanca, Pampange, Mayor Genigno Layug and his
nephew, Dr, Carlos Layug came to us and Mayor Layug was given an appointment
by the Colonel as a guerrilla leader and the doctor was appointed a Medieal
Officer, The two followed us to Porac, When we reached Baldugan, Porac, Col,
Therp sent messengers to contact Col, Mario Pamintuan and on March 6, 1942,
Col Pamintuan came with his wife and Mayor Mareisno Diszon of Porac. Colonel
Thorp authorised Col, Pamintuan as a guerrilla commander and organizer., That
might we procesded to M. Timbo and Col Pamintuan returned to his hiding
place yith his compenions. The next day, Col Pamintuan came sgain with Tomas
Lumanalan and Commander Franeisco Ocampo, bringing with them some arms and
other supplies which they gave to Col Thorp and Col Mario Pamintusn contimued
to supply us with our meeds during our stay inm the vicinity of Porac. In
Timbo, we alse met Mr, Bugenio oliman, a man who before the war was connected
in the government administration of mon~Christian Tribes, the balugas or negri-
toes, and he also appointed him as a guerrilla leader,

While in Camp Four, Col. Therp reorganized his staff, making Capt.
MoGuire his adjutant and Lt, Lapham his Supply Officer. He also made Colonel
Pamintuen a member of his staff and his right hand man, The three sons of
Colonel Pamintuan, Andres, Artemic and Mario, Jr., were appointed couriers
and persomal body-guards of Colomel Thorp, Col Thorp ordered Capt MacGguire
and some other men to proceed to Wi, Pinatubu to prepars the Camp,

On the later of May 1942, a Major Berber of the Intelligence Corpe
came to join the Colomel's Camp. He was with some soldiers and he brought
with him a radi set., A few days later, Casto Alejandrino and a follow Sam-
pang came and volunteered their services, but only after two wesk of ohserva-
tion that they were given letters of authority. These two are leaders of the
Fukbalahap guerrilla faction and as afterwards they deliberately ignored the

and their faction continue to abuse their authority,
authority were cancelbd in August, 1942, Also Sgt A. Bruece

their letters of
came to join and he was assigmed to take command of a Chinese Guerrills unit
at that time operating in the mounteins of Perac,

caped the Japs in the surrender of Bataen, joined our camp and
our organisation. These officers were Capt, Barker, Capt.

- 2 -
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Pannel, Capt, Lage, Lt Col Smith, It Ramsey, Pvt Strickland, and a Major
whose name I have forgotten and cannot just mow recall., Unfortunately,
Capt Pannel dled in camp,.

After the fall of Corregidor, Col Thorp again reorganised his staff
and pave the officers new assignments, Capt Barker was made Executive 0f-
ficer and was %o cover Pampanga, Lt Ramsey was made District Commander of
the Horthwest Pempanga Military District and adjutant to Capt Darker. Sgt
E. Brooks was assigned in Tarlac, Anderson was sent to Tayabas, Capt Bell
was given Batsan, and Zambales was turmed over to Capt MeGuire., Col Pamine
tuan was made Regimental Commander of the First Regiment of the Northwest
Pampanga Military District and later succeeded Lt Ramsay as Distriet Com-
mander, and was in turn succeeded by Lt Col Franeisco Ocampo am Regimental
Commander, Capt Wilbur Lage became Adjutant to Col Thorp. It Frank Young
was sent on & mission to Mindanao and proceed to Australia, but we never

heard of him since, MNiss Lydia Hardin wes appointed special agent to do
intelligence work,

In June, 1942, Mr, Emilio Hermandez {rom Macabebe, Pampanga, and Hr,
Paulino Lamsing came and volunteered and were given .authority to do intel-
ligence work in the sowth and a letter appointing Col Ramirisz as District
Commander of Southern Iuson was sent thru Mr, E, Hernandez, but it seemed
that he did not received the letter of authority so the Colonel sent Capt
Sples to take charge of the south, but the latter died while on his way to

£411 his job. I heard recently that Mr, Lamsing was killed in action on
November 1942,

¥r, Agustin Capulong was also given an authority as guerrilla leader,
and an avthority %o orgamisze s guerrilla unit in Pangasinan was also given
to Mr, Federico Sonaco as he was from that provinece,

On July 4, 1942 Col Thorp promulgated and issued his CGemeral Order No,
1, setting forth rules and regulations for all authorised guerrillas to
follow, On this date he also wrote a message for Australia, sending a copy
of the message to Capt MeGuire in Zambales to be delivered to a submarine
that may happen to call, at the same time he sent the same message thru
radio; In this message he included his acoemplishments to date and recom-
mendations for the promotions of officers and enlisted men,

A general conference was called and ssheduled to be held on August 29,
1942, o be attended by all District Commanders and Squadron Leaders, but
on the evening of August 28, 1942, our FHeadguarters at Timbo was raided by
the Japs. The alarm came almost too late so that we had really a very
narrow escape. We escaped to Mt, Panagalan and stayed there for a while,
In that raid, the negrito barber of the Colenel, the houseboy of Caph
Barker, named Tomy, and ome of Soliman's men were captured by the Japanese,
Col Thorp suspected that one of our rumners, a fellow named Rodrigues, a
tagalog from Manila at this period residing in Sapangvbato, Angeles, Pam-
pange, sold us out to the Japs tipped them about the conference but luckily
got mixed up with the right date,

-3-
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With this incident of the raid fresh im the mind of the colomel and
his realization that in cur present hiding place we were still within the
range of the treachery that seeked to destroy us, and as previous to this
incident Marcos Laxamana of Sta. Jullana, Tarlae, came trying to convinece
the colonel that Patling is the safest place, and also, because the Colonel
believed that there was more possibility and opportunity in Tarlae to ecarry
out to a successful realization of his obsession to negotiate with the leaders
of the Hukbalahap for a cooperative and harmomiously planned combined action
against the common enemy, 50 he finally declded to move to Tarlac despite
the solicituons warning of Col Pamintuan that we might be moving to a trap.
After writing to Col Pamintuan, on September 2,192, we started for Sta
Juliena, Tarlac with Sgt Williame Brooks, radio operstor, as our only Ameri-
can companion besides the colomel, of course. We were met by Ex-mayors
Fries and Mor¢os Lexamana, as well as by Sgt Everett Brocks who was commander
gt Tarlac at that time, in Haniengl we stayed there for at lesst ome week
and thep we started for our final destination and hide-out in Mr Pugad-babi
in Patling. MNercos Lazsmana gave us for a guide and handy-msn, Andres dela
Crus, When we reached our destination and saw the headquarters built for us
by Lazamena, I begun to feel uneasy for I saw at once that it was not an
jdeal hide-out., We can easily be surrounded and we had no avenue for esecape
as our rear was covered by tall mountains and which were almost inpenetrable.
I told Lexsmena about my misgivings, but he soothed me by esaying that my
fear really unfounded, becsuse he sald that thru our connections we could
easily learn sbout the future Japenese railds, even if the raiders were still
in the town of Terlaec.

A week after our stay in our new Headquarters, I received a letter from
Capt Salangsang warning us to be on the look=-out as the Japanese had already
caught and imprisoned my guardian, I told Col Thorp about the letter and
he said that we make preparation to move to Pangasinan, But, hefore we
finished our preparations, we found ourselved surrounded and caught by the
Sapanes on Octobef 29, 1942, Those caught besides the colonel and myself
by the Japanese were Sgt W, Boooks, Dionicia Limpin, Pvi Magat, Fabian
Franco, fiwe balugas and other eivilians, We were all hogetied, Later,
some Jap soldiers brought in Andres de la Crus, tied up, but when the pguide
of the Japs, Andres Ferrer, was this, he epproached and teked with officer
in command and Andres de la Cruz was released and they returned to him his
gun, They found and teok all of the papers of the colenel.

First, they brought us to Barrio Maanot in the house of Andres Ferrer
where we stayed for one day and one night, There we were given preliminary
investigation, end I believed none of us revealed snything detrimental to
the organization afd the cause. From Masnot we walked two days and ome night |
to Camp §'Donnell, and themece, to Fort Stotsenburg which we reach on Novem-
ber 2, 1942, mid stayed in the Xempel house. On the early morning of Hovem-
ber 3, 1942, ten of us were brought to a house near Barrio Dolores, and we
feared that we were about to be killed, I learned later that the ecolemel
pleaded for us, that was why we were not disposed but returned to the Kempel.
After a while, they toock us to the prisom of Fort Stotsemburg, We were
placed in small rooms, five in esch room, After a day or two, Hr, Vicente
Frias was caught and put in prison with i,

wil -
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After a few days, I was surprised to see one of our men, Daniel
Hernandes, come in with Japamese soldiers. I learned later that he was
made a guide in the raid against Capt Lage and other guerrilla leaders in
Tarlae including Sgt E. Brooks, but he had deliberately misled the soldiers,
g0 he was also imprisoned,

After a week we were transferred in a bigger room, but Col Thorp and
his four companions remained in their small cell, On Dec 29, 1942, kr.
Friae and the balugas were released. Up to this time and much later, Col

On Jammary 4, 1943, W, Brooks was taken to Manila, but was brought
back to Fort Stotzenburg after a week.

On Jamuary 22, 1943, Col Thorp with Daniel Hernandez and Fabian Frameo
were sent to Manila, but the two Filipines were sent home, Befeore he was
sent to NManila, Col Thorp was able to smuggle a letter to me; in this letter,
he told me of this suspleion that we were again betrayed by men we trusted,
meaning Marcos Laxamana and Andres de la Cruzs, This suspicion was confirmed
to me by the interpreter of the Chief of Staff, George Isibashi, a Japanese
bora in the Philippines and a naturalised Filipino citizen., Also later by
the confession of Harcos Laxamena to a guerrilla leader in Tarlac, before
he was ligquidated by the guerrilla unit in Tarlae, Andres de la Crusz and
Andres Ferrer are still at large. The Colonel also expressed his wish that
deliver to Col Pamintuan his ploture and identification card which were
sewed at that time in the lower fold of my dress.

-

On February 5, 1943, I was released with the other woman, Dicnicia
Limpin, I was ordered to report to the Office of the Chief of Staff of the
Japanese Army at Fort Stetsenburg, where I was lectured and given "spiritual
rejuvination®, I was ordered to work with their propaganda corpes by making
gpeeches. In this task, I have learned the practice of the art of deceit,
as I have to be careful and use words conveying two different meanings.

On FPebruary 17, 1943, 8gt Everett Brooks was caught and imprisoned.

During the confinement of Col Thorp in Fort Santiago in Kanila, I
have not heard mmch about him, except the news that now and then he was
exhibited in the public to prove that he was really caught, because of the
people though and believed that it was only propaganda and ruse when the
Japs first claimed that they caught the colomel, Now and then Interpreter
Ishibashi gave me assurance that the colomel would not be killed but would
be concentrated with Gemeral King and Gemeral Wainwright.

It was a eruel stroke of Pate when one day, Col Ramires told me that
Col Thorp, Col Straughn and Col Nakar and others were executed on October 4,
1943 in La Loma, Thus was ended the career of a brave patriot who started
the underground movement in Luszon, but who was not lucky enough to see and
enjoy the fruit of his sacrifice; who have lost the credit that right-
fully belonged to him, and the of his noble deeds would have been
neglected and relegated to obscurity, were it not for the efforts
of a few friends, like Colonel Mario Pamintuan, of the Northwest Pampanga
who with loyalty and stubborn determination had brought

!
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Bxtract from G-3 Guerrilla Affairs Division, by Mr. ¥, S, McLelland Jr,

LUZON GUERRILLA ARMY FORCES (LGAF)
In early Februsry 1942, a party of imericans hesded by Lt Col

Cleude Thorp cross through the lines in Batean bound north. Their mission
was one of collecting informetion of the enemy and releying it to General
Weinwrights headquarters. The party included Major (then Lt) Robert B.
Laphem, subsequently the orgeniser the commending officer of the Luson
Guerrilla Army Forces. Betesn surrendered in April 1942 end Col Thorp
extended permission to his plrty to disperse and orgasnize resistance groups
composed of patriotic civilien wolunteers., Lt Lapham with Sgt Albert
Short snd Esteben Lumyeb, PA, left Col Thorp at Pinatubo end crossed the
central plaing to Lupso, Fueva Ecija. Here they commenced orgenizstion
and contected Cols Moges and loble who were on their wey to Forthern Lusonm,
;ﬂ informed them of their intentions. Sgt Short remeined in Lupec and
organigsed whet was leter to be known as Syuedron 300, Lt Lephsm proceeded
to Umingen end orgenised a group letter to be known asg Sjuedron 111, These
two squadrons were the mcleus of the LGAF, and, st thet time of company
strength. In July 1942, en independent unit under Jeremiss Serafice joined
Lepham end was incorporated within the LGAF,
In Aug 1942, Herry MecKenzie reported to Lepham's hesdquarters

on a migsion of unificetion from Anergon's headquarters. Upon his return
he was unsble to locate Andergon who had moved this headquerters to the
Eagt Coest region. MecKenzie remsined with Lephem end was appointed as
the Mueva Ecijs Area Commender and later Executive Officer of the LGAF,

Upon directiom of Col Thorp, orgenized urits were to be desige
nated ag "Sjuedrons."
Pangasinan squedrons were mumbered in the "100's", Western Nueve Ecijes,
"200's", end Esstern Mueve Ecija "400's". Lepham's own unit wag designated
3d 111, Short's Sd 300, end Serefica's 207, By the end of 1942, six

* L *



Extrect from Ge3 Guerrilla Affairs Division, by Mr. #,s5. McLelland Jr
ABDER LY S GUIRRILLAS

In late February 1942, Hﬂirlmwthﬂhmnmli not
withstand the onsglsught of the enemy, Capt Bernard L Anderson, A0, and
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Lt Bert E Pittitt, iC, esceped through the Bateam Peningule to Airforce
Headquarters at 1ittle Beguio. On 9 April 1942, after the mwrender, they
left the Heedquarters snd proceeded to Dinslupihsn where they met Major
Rugsall Volckmann and Cept Donald Blsckburn who were trsveling morth to
Baguio. inderson sml Pettitt contined with esrlier plens to sttempt to
resch Mindenso scrogs the Centrel Ploins of Luson., In Florida Blanca they
met seversl Americans smong whom were Barker, Sples, and Bell, Conference
decided these offiscers to estsbligh e registence movement. Capt Anderson
and It Pettitt turned north in sn effort to ccntect Col Clsude A Thorp. Upon
mmﬂmIMhMMwM Ander son to contact the
Fukbalshep. This was sccomplished but the Hukbalehsp leaders did not express
willingness to served under the USAFFE command, A plan of cooperation, howe
ever, was drafted,

In July 1942, Anderson, Berker, and Pettitt organized units in
Bastern Bulecan, Contact was esteblished with the Free Fhilippines orgenise=
tion in Nemils on 2 Fovember 1942, Thig unit offered to sid the Anderson
organisation, now known as the USAFFE LGAF, This offer wes repested by the
Tengulen Guerrillas. Anderson's hesdquarters in the Calumpit mountaing
was attecked by elements of enemy infantry, alrereft, and ertillery om 28
December 1942, Squadrong 85, 133, and 135 murrendered to the enemy. In
spite of imcressing enemy sctivity, Anderson was sble to contact Barker in
Nenils, Barker adviged him thet Thorp hed been captured by the Japenese
and assigned him ap commanding officer of the Best Central Luszon Avea,

e P

Anderson gent Capt Jaime Henzano, then commanding the 29th Guerrille Sjuadron,
to Noveliches, Rizal, to establish a headquarters and contect other guerrille
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1. 1st It Kemneth H, Neubauer investigated this unit during May 1947.
Ho field investipgation was deemed necessary, Rt

2. ALIBGED HISTORY:; (See Attached Unit File)
3. PINDINGS:

a. The following person was interviewed and his statement is
reflected in the findinga. '

Capt Benigno G. Tabora Jr. G-3 Guerrilla Affairs

. by Record of service was not substantiated by sufficient accep-
table evidence, This unit which claims itself as a guerrilla unit is
completely refuted by a letter from Cverton F, Harris, Lt Col, A.C. (Res)
(Inel I). Pedro B. Abrencia who claims he is a Capt of this unit is not
even mentioned im Col Herris' letter, Col Harris states that the officer
in charge of. the men working for his unit was a 2nd Lts Capt Abrencia
claims 105 men in his WP detachment, were .working for the 17th Reconalssance
Squadron, Ool Harris states there were- 16 men with 1 ofi'icer in charge,
These 17 men were hired as "civilian watchmen" and were duly compensated
for their labors (Inel 1,). Their primary dities were to keep natives
from the squadron area, It is very apparent these "eivilian watchmen" can
not be classified as guerrillas. Apparently Capt Abrencia decided to Join
the guerrilla movement late in 1844 (Incl I1). He took command of a umit
which had members dating back to 1942, It seems very strange that Pedro
Abrencia joimed the guerrills movement at such a late date and now claim
recognition as a Capt, Capt Benigno G, Tabera Jr. who was a member of the
1st Pangasinan Regiment ECLGA, and who is very familiar with guerrilla
potivities in this area stated that he had never heard of the NP detachment
of "C" Co 3rd Pangasinan Regiment engaging in any suerrilla asetivities, It
18 the investigating officers' belief with the evidence presented by Col
Harris, and the evidence submitted in the unit file this organisation was
not a bona<fide guerrilla unit, but simply a group of civilians employed
by the U.5, Army end who were duly pald for their efforts by the U.S,
Government. ) ' :

¢, The unit was not maintained satisfactorily-in the fisld, This
unit consisted of civilians emnloyeed by the U.S5. Government and therefore
can not be classified as guerrillas not were in the field,

d., Activities did not contribute materially te the eventual defeat
of the enmemy, The few members of this unit that were used by the U.S.
Government were used primarily as eivilian watchmen to guard s reconnaissance
pnit apeinst pilferape and looting by their own country men,
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a. Unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity and
organization. The small number of members used by the U.5., forces is the
only evidence of sctivity by the organization and it is not puerrilla
activity. The numbers of men claimed by the unit as guerrillas,is oub of
proportion actually used by the U.S. forces (Inel 1),

. £. ¥embers of the unit did not devote their entire effort to
military activities in the field to the exclusion of eivilian oecupation,
The efforts of this unit are conclusively civilian pursuite in which they
were fully compensated.

be Wl This unit does not appear to have any poli-
tical affilistions or aspirations,

5o WELFTIQEI It is ﬁumunﬁud that the MP detachment; "C™ Co
3rd Pangasinan Regiment PTED, ECIGA consisting of 105 men be not fevorably
considered for recognition,

KENNETH H, NEUBAUER
lat Lt CAC
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| i an;: on the Lipa Guerrilla Hea. uarters
l | Combat Team

L j 25 July, 1947

l. 1st, 1t, Kenneth H Neubauer, investigated the unit files,
reports of investigation, and disinterested persons to determine
whether the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team deserves reve
ision of its present recognition date. The Lipa Guerrillas Head-
quarters Combat Team was recognized by letter, Hq. USAFFE, FEPA

370,64, dated 1 April 1945, The effective date of recognition
was 1 April 1645,

2. ALLEGED HISTORY: (See attached unit file.)
3« FIVDINRGS: A, The following persons were interviewed

and their statements are reflected in the findings.

1st. Lt. Marion C. Allbright Guerrilla Aff. Div,
ende Lt. Pete C. Breaz " " n
end, Lt. Bruce Bromley Jr. " " n
end. Lt, Raul De Rivera " " "

b, The Lipa Guerrilla Headguarters Combat Team, was ordered
to organize on the 19 Feb. i945, with Horacio L. Ilagen as the
commanding officer. The authority for activation of this unit was
made by memo, frql Headquarters Guerrilla Forces, Tagaytay City,
dated, 19 Feb, 1945, by order of General Swing. It was attached for
duty with the 11th. Airborne Divis*nn, and subsequently racngnizld
with the strength of 69 officers and men,

Previous to the Llpa Guerrilla Hq., Combat Team's
acivation, 1t's members were part of the Rillo-Veri Tnit.
The Rille Weri Unit was not favorably considered for recgn |
in ‘the initial investigation condueted by It. Max I. Brahlﬂn; jﬂ'
formerly of the Guerrilla Affairs Division. A second infllt}gitiun

|
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conducted by Lt's, Bruce Bromley Jr., Pete C Breaz, and Raul
De Rivera, of this division during Feb. 1947, again rendered
an unfavorable decision for recognition. A reconsideration
of the unit was undertaken by Lt. Marion C, Allbright of this
division during July 1947, and for the third time the unit was
not favorably considered for recognition. The above facts are
presented on the Rillo Neri Unit as the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters
Combat Team was an integral part of the Rillo~Neri Unit. (Inc. 1)

The combat company of the Rillo~Neri Unit, (Lipa Grla Hq. .
Guihlt Team) was organized in February 1945, From the unit history
it states that the Lipa Guerrilla Hg. Combat Team was organized from

9/ TES TGN fawouny
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the Rillo-Neri Unit. (Inc.'2) Since the activities of the Rillo-

Neri Unit do not warrant recognition, the members of the combat

team, who were recruited from the various elements of the
overallorganization have no basis for revision.

Activities claimed by the Rillo-Neri unit which necessarily
would be claimed by the combat team are as follows: (Inc. 3)

1 a. Gathering of arms and ammunition.

b. Bolstering morale of the panplé

e, Sabotage, and elimenation of Japanese spies.

d, Contribtutions to needy families,

e. Naintanance of peace and order.

f. Intelligence reports.

g. Patrols.

The gathering of arms and ammnition has been refuted by
the reports of investigation by Lt's. Brabson, and Bromley. Lt.
Brabson states that practically none of the men interviewed had
'aiﬁan: during the occupation. Lt's Bromley and Brabson both
state in their report's that many of the men deserted tha:unit
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bae&ysa of its passive activities,

Though contributing to the needy families in the area 1s
a uulnanduhiu act, it cannot be considered guerrilla activity.
Bolstering the morale of the people also cannot be classified as
guerrilla activity.

Alleged activities in regards to intelligence and sabotage
are not Quhstlntiatad by sufficient evidence, There is nor
record of any positive results as a result of this activity. This
claim of aetivity is further refuted by Cmdr. Rowe who states that
guerrilla organizations in Batangas were Very small and of no worth,
It is apparent that since this unit was a passive organization its
claims are highly exaggerated.

The unit file contains orders, memorandums etc. from
Ma jor Vanderpool, and Capt. Shommer, coordinators of guerrilla
aetivity in this area. The units qlaim of activities because of
these orders is not substantiated. In many cases such orders wara:
distributed to many purported guerrilla organizations. Evidence of
activity cannot be claimed simply by the possession of such orders.
This fact is further substantiated by the fact that the Rillo-Neri
Unit was not favorably considered by three separate investigations
made by this Headquarters.

From thé evidence presented it 1s apparent that the Lipﬁ
Guerrilla Hq. Combat Team did not exist previous to its attache
ment to the 11th. Airborne Division. Until the Lipa Guerrilla
Headquarters Combat Team was organized, the members of the subject
anit were from various components of the Rillo-Neri Unit. As a

component of the Rillo-Neri Unit insufficient evidence has been

presneted to warrant any further dates of racngnitiﬁn.
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10 Sept 1947

~ 1+ On 10 Sept 1947, lst It Kenneth H, Neubsuer investigated the unit
file /of the United States Army World War Veterans Ouerrillas Unit (Ind) to
| whether that unit deserves revision of its present date of recog-
nigion, The U.S.H: World War Veterans Guerrilla Unit (Ind) was recognised
by letter AG 370,64 PA, Hq AFPAC, dated 17 July 1945, The unit was recognized
" 4n a strength of 92, The effective date of recognition was 21 May 1945, '

2, ALIEGED HISTORY: (See attached Unit File)
3« EINDINGS:

&, The following persons were interviewed and their statements are
reflected in the findings, .

Ool Eustaquio Magen Subject Unit's Commander
Capt Maris Penma Hember

'1st It Antonio D, Villar . .

2nd Lt Pariblo Espiritw u

2nd Lt Simplicio Tu-os "
' Sgt Restituto Noche n

Sgt Antonio Lagrimas "

Sgt Melencio Lagmay .

"

Pvt Benjamin Bautista

_bu This organisation under the command of Eustaquio Magon remained
absolutely passive during the Japanese occupation. The Unit was an intellie
gence and sabotage unit, having only (3) weapons and (2) radio receiving sets.
There is no supperting evidence to substantiate the claim of sabotage and
intelligence activities, Nome of the persons interviewed could zive a cohe-
rent account of intelligence. allegedly gathered or where the alleged ssbotage
oceurred, The main activity claimed was exhorting the people in Pasay to
resist the enemy,

¢, !Munitmmmninﬁdmdhmﬂaminumitimtntha
enemy. The members claim no combat with the enemy, The unit was not a milie
tary organisation and its activities in opposition to the ememy were nil,

ds Activities of the unit did not contribute materially to the evene
tual defeat of the ememy, During the occupation, the unit was nothing more
than a debating society and during the liberation period, several mewbers
worked as guards and laborers for the 11th Airborne Division for which they

were M-
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e, Members of the unit lived at home supporting their families by
means of civilian pursuits. Many members of the unii worked as fisherman,
merchants and farmers, Several members worked for the Japanese puppet

government., s
4. COMENTS ON ORTIGINAL RECOGNITION:

1t les W, Kelly recommended that 92 members of this be recognized.
Lt Eelly's investigation and sequent recommendation of the unit does not
conform to the facte known, Excerpts from Lt Keely's TIR, indicate sound

judgenment was not used in his recommendation, Lt Kelly's report states:

s o o« o"Thies unit was active in propaganda work," No specific indicents

are mentioned in the report in which it is known that this unit was active

in disseminating propaganda, During the investigation of the supplementary
roster, Col Magon stated that the unrecognized members did as much as the ones
which were recognized, The report of investigation of the supplementary roster
states that the activity of these men was not of such a nature to deserve
guerrilla recognition; therefore, since the activities of the recognized mem-
bers was of the same ealiber as the unrecognized members recognition was
apparently sxtended in error, It Kelly's report further states...,"A few men
of this mmit joined the 11lth Airborme Divieion and helped in locating enemy
positions,” Lt Kelly has stated that e few men were active, but insufficient
evidence has been presented that 92 men were active and therefore worthy of
recognition, Lt Kelly further states that these few men helped in locating
enemy positions, The losating of the enemy is not a basis for guerrilla
recognition. It was brought out during the investigation of the supplemen-
tary roster that this unit never engaged in combat against the Japanese. The
men that joined the 11th Airborne Division were hired as laborers and paid
for their services, 3

A @aptain Santarroman commanded the unit while Magon was missing from
27 August 1944 until 1, September 1945, Santarroman spbmitted the rester of
92 officers and men which were recogniszed, The commanding officer (Magon)
claims a membsérship of 1800 officers and men, yet the total number of officers
and men submitted is 173 (92 recognized and 81 on the NFC'd supplementary
roster), The commanding officer camnot, nor can any of the other officers
account for the missing 1627 officers and men,

In summary, it is safe to state that the recognized portionrof the
U:8.A. World War Veterans Guerrilla Unit (Ind) never operated as a unit and
that their activities if any, are preactically negligible, With this infor-
mation, it can be surmised that recognition was extended in error,

5, 1st Lt Kemneth H, Neubauer and Leon J. Sonders who Investlgated
the supplementary roster of this orgamization recommended that the unit not
be favorably considered for revision of dates,

6., POLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any political
affiliations or aspirations. |

TR ‘



It is recommended that: (a) ~ The United States

Army World War Veterans Guerrilla Unit (Independent) be not faverably considered -
for revision of present recognition dates. ?‘: - An investigation whose pur=
pose will be revocation of the existing recognition of this umit be instigated,

T

KENNETH H, NEUBAUER
1lst Lt CAC
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1 i | . Revision Report :
D-I Combat Area Gnnplnz ngn
(Pandita drea, Free Luzon Area, Sixth Military District)

ie

3 October 1947

1., 1lst Lt Kenneth H Neubauer examined the unit file and
reports of investigation of the D-I Combat Area, Company "A",
to determine whether that unit deserves revision of its pre-
sent dates of recognition, The D-I Combat Area, Company "aY,
was recognized by letter, Headquarters AFWESPAC, dated 9 March
1945, The unit was recognized in a strength of 159, for the
period between & March 1945 to 31 May 1945,

2. ALLEGFD HISTORY: (See attached unit file.)
3+ EINDINGSS
8s A fleld investigation was not deemed necessary.

bs The D=-I Combat Area, Company "A", an integral part
of the Pandita Area, D-I Combat, Free Luzon Area, Sixth Milit-
ary District, was commanded by &utulinn Javier, The overall or-
ganization zPInﬂita Area, D-1 Combat, Free Luzon Area, Sixth
Military Diltriut} was commanded by a one Denny Flores.

¢. The unit known as Company "A", D-I Combat Area,
was not meintained satisfactorily in the riald in oppesition

to the enemy, The organization was purely an intelligence unit
during the period of enemy occupation. From early 1943 to the
beginning of the liberation operations in Luzon. the members of
this unit were aware of the fact that the "lar—iul" order was

in effeet, and the procurement of intelligence was to be the

main objective, The intelligence reports submitted by this unit
were valueless, All intelligence reports of the unit were sub-
mitted to the overall commander of the organization (Flores) and
from Flores' Headquarters they were sent to Pana § therefore by
the time these intelligence reports arrived at their destination
they were of very little value. There are no known results to
have been derived from intelligence reports sent out by this unit,
The organization remained passive during the liberation up to its
attachment with the American Forces operating in the area. During
the period of attachment to the US Army, the main duties of the
unit consisted of acting as laborers, guides, and conducting re-
connaissance patrols to a very limited IItEﬂE. For these services
the unit was duly recognized. The unit claims to have been under
the direect control of Headguarters Sixth Military Distriet which
was commanded by Colonel Macario Peralta, There 1is no substan-
tiating evidence present such as directives, appointments, eireu-
lars, memorandums, special orders, and such other records to sup-
port this claim, The unit which purports to be an intelligence
unit never had contact with any of the AIB or guerrilla stations
then operating in the Batangas Area.
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d. A definite organization was not established during
the occupation period. It can be stated that records of induc-
tion were kept, but there are no records of what members of the
unit did after induction. It is a known fact that guerrilla
units, in most cases, required members to sign induction papers
thuulﬂ their lutivitial subsequent to induction are not, in all
cases, deemed to justify recognition, -

e. Activities of the unit did not materially contri-
bute to the eventual defeat of the enemy. The intelligence acti-
vitles in which this unit claim to have engaged, had no immediate
source of transmittal, nor was the unit in contact with any of
the Allied Intelligence Bureau's transmitter from which its in-
telligence reports could be relayed to SWPA. The unit did not
engage in any combat operations up until the time it was attached
to the 382nd AAA AW Bn, US Army, on 8 March 1945,

f+ Performance of the unit did not indicate adeguate
eontrol by its officers for the following reasons:

(1) Desertion of personnel to other guerrilla units.

(2) Members of the unit did not devote their entire
effort to military activities in furtherance of the resistance

movement to the exelusion of normal eivilian oceccupation and fami-
ly obligations.

, (3) Members lived in their homes and did not remain
with the unit.

4, The subject unit as an integral part of the Pandita Area,
D-I Combat, Free Luzon Area, Sixth Military District, has been in-
vestigated on two different occasions by officers of the guerrilla
Affairs Division, The first investigation by Lts Peter R Betts
and Tirso Cura, culminated with the recommendation that the or-
anization be not favorably considered for recognition. (Ltr, Hq

PAC, dated 7 June 1946) The second investigation of this
ur:lnizu{inn was undertaken by Lt J H Manzano, Guerrilla Affairs
Divigion, PHILRYCON, The unit again was not fuvnrahly considered
for recognition by letter, Headquarters PHILRYCOM, dated 26 Sep-
tember 1947, 1Tt 1s conclusively indicated by these two reports
that the activities of the overall organization did not contri-
bute sufficiently to the war effort to deserve recognitionj there-
fore Company "A" as part of the overall organization does not de-
serve revision of dates of recognition,

5+ The organization elaims that it incurred six (6) casual-

. tles during the occupation and liberation. It is recommended

that any casualty which occurred during the period the unit wes
attached to US Forces be favorably considered if those concerned
present a request for casualty recognition,

6., EOLITICAL ASPECTS:
This unit does not appear to have any politiecal affili-
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ations or aspirations.

7. SECOMMENDATIONS:

.It is recommended that the D-I Combat Area, Company "A"
be not favorably considered for revision of its present recogni-
tion dates,

KENNETH H NEUBAUER
1st Lt, cac
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1, 1lst Lt Kenneth H, Neubauer and lst Lt Avery G. ¥ills proceeded

%o Munoz, Nueva Ecija March 1947, to investigate Squadron 222, Nueva
Bcija Military Area, (LGAF) .

2, ALIEGED AISTORY: (See esttached Unit File)
3. FINDINGS:

a, The following persons were interviewed and thelr statements
are reflected in the findings:

Capt Paul A, Marinas @AV, AUS..... 0.0. 4950 TC Det P.U. Area
Capt Jose C, Saddulsiescsnssisaansns Commanding O0fficer
St Plorentine Pagasinan..ssevisees Unit Member

n

Sgt‘ Jm hrﬂa SRR EEE RN ENER L NS 8 n
Gpl Eﬂriquﬂ sﬂhiﬂ T EEEE R EEENREE RS LN " "
Pfe Prudencio Olandla ssesaneeseaan e n

Mnufﬂ'nﬂm“:n---iiluitsllul-.;| " "
Pvt Traudle Bﬂuti’tvﬂ :--.;-I----ii-i " 2

b. Record of service was not substantiated by suf ficient
aceeptable evidence, This organizatlon under Capt Jose C, Saddul did not
present acceptable evidence of activity against the Japanese during the
occupation and liberation, The onit consisted of members from the Central
Luzon Agricultural school at Nunoz, Nueva Bcija. The investigating officers
learned from the men interviewed that members of this unit lived at the
sechool, and the barrios surrounding Munoz during the occupation and libera-
tion, No evidence was presented to substantiate the allegations that the
unit engzaged in military activities against the ememy., The unit CO, Capt
8addul stated that all members of his organization wore fully armed,
Evidence is present to show that unit did not have weapons of any type.

Cleime of intelligence work, sabotage, and propaganda activities
were not supported with evidensce., WYembers of the unit made conflicting
statements concerning the alleged activities of the organization, but
none were presented showing guerrilla activity, From doocuments attached
to the unit file it is apparent that an organization of some sort was formed.
However, investization reveals the orgenization was not a true maerrilla unit,
but rather of a homeguard organization, Results of the investigation reveals
that squadron 222 attempted %o waintain law and order in the barrios sur-

rounding Nunos, but most members devoted thelr time to furthering their
education.

When questioned sbout about original copies of orders and docu-
ments the unit claimed pessession of , Capt Saddul stated that they had
been losk or destroyed. The ilnvestigating officers do not believe that
the alleged coples of originels in the unit file are gufficient evidence
in themselves to substantiate the unit,commander's claim that he had an
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active guerrilla unit, Alleged true copies of communications sent to
Saddul by Maj Robert B, Laphenm, Commanding Officer, LGAF, and Capt Hary
ficKenzle, Ex 0, of (LGAF¥), are present in the file, but these communice- _
tlons are not of & nature to support allepations of guerrilla activities.

' The absence of any corroborating verbal testimony to substantiate
olaims made inm the unit history, leads the investigating team to believe
the unit as represemted by Joee Saddul did not exist ase an active organi-

sation resisting the Japanese,

6« The unit was not maintained satisfactorily in the field in
opposition to the ememy, Members of the unit pursued their education all
during the occupation and lived at the school, Members interviewed stated
their organizetion had never engaged in combat mctivities against the

Japanese,

d, A definite organization was mot ssteblished by this unit,
Hembers of the unit had no specific duties for the ranks they held, This
organization consisted of-a grouvp of etudents living together who olaim

guerrilla activities, "

o
_ e, The unit did ndi show satisfactory continuity of. activity
because the commanding officer =e well as the unit members can not show

evidence of any accomplishments during the occupation or liberation,

© £+ Ko useful purpose will be nn;anplishad by Turther investiga-
tion of this unit, No members are worthy of recognition and a casualty

roster has been submitted,

4+ POLITICAL ASPECTS:

This unit does met appear to have any political affiliations
or aspirations,

5. EBCOMMENDATIONS ;

It is recommended that Squadron 222, Nueva Ecija Wilitary Area,
USAFFE (LGAF), comsisting of 119 men, be not faverably considered for

recognition,

EENNETH H. NEUBAUER
13t Lt CAC
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Report on Squad 227 (01d Broneo Unit)LGAF

22 April 1947

1. 1st Lt Kenneth H, Neubauwer, and 1st Lt Leon J, Sonders,
ded to Munos, Nueva Ecija April 1947 to investigate Squadron 227

01d Bromeco Unit) LGAF,
2. ALIECED HISTORY: (See Attached Unit File)
3, FINDINGS:

a., The following persons were interviewed and their statements
are reflected in the findings: | .

Maj. Robert B, lapham  AUS CO, LGAF

Capt, Benigno Tahora AUS G-3 Guerrilla Affairs Div,

Capt., Abdon Aquino CO 103rd Squad LGAF

Capt, Artemio Castanseda Company CO. Squad 403rd LGAF

Capt. Pimentel Bn. CO, 3rd Bn, 18t Tarlac Regt. (LGAF)

Gl.pfu Paul A, Morinas AUS CO0, 4590 T.C Det {I’E) P,U. Aren
Capt. Jovito &, Gubrian CO, 227 Squadren

2nd Lt, Arturo Ismael Unit Mem

2nd Lt, Julio Diocson n n

lst Sgt. Felipe Campos "
Sgt. Sergio M, Bonifacio "
Pfe., Antonio R, Adona "
Pfe. Valeriano Doculan »
Pfe, Mario Vicente »
Pfe, Constaneio M, Bautista"
Pfc., Pablo de los Reyes
Pvt. Francisco Javier
Pvt. Alfredo N, Villamate
Pvt., Polieargo Recario
Pvt., Fedenco Angeles

Pvt. Roman Sibulbare

Pvt. Nicasio Edralin

Pvt. Isidro Mariano

Pvt. Adriano Valdez

Pvt. Teodoro V., Gatus

s =2 =23 3

ZE = 2 3 32 3 E 3 % =E
2 =2 32 2 = =2 =22 83

b: Record of service was substantiated by sufficient acceptable
evidence, This organization previous to hostilities in 1941 consisted of
all USAFFE members. There were one hundred and twelve(112) Philippine
Scouts, thirty four(34) Philippine Army, and six(6) civilians in the umit,

The organization was commanded by Capt. Jovito Gubrian (Ine.l)
who was one of Major Lapham's original members in LGAF, The men of this
unit fought until the surrender at Bataan and then escaped to various
provinces,
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Jovito Gubrian was inducted into the LGAF on 4 Msy 1943 by
Major Lapham, He was commissioned a lst Lt, and assigned to intellipgence
activities (Inel 1), The "Lay-low" order and gathering information
about the enemy had been ordered by Gen, MacArthur previous to his depar-

ture from the Philippines.

; Major Lapham stated that Gubrian and the men under him
gathered some of the most important and reliable information about the
enemy's activities. During the time Gubrian acted as intelligence officer
for LGAF he was organizing all Philippine Scouts in the area of Guimba,
Munoz, N, E. and Victoria, Tarlac, into a Guerrilla unit, '

During this time he contacted Paul A, Marinas now Capt. CAV,
AUS, (4590 T.C, Det (PFS) P,U,A.) who had been doing intelligence work in
Bulacan province. Capt. Marinas joined this organization during May 1944.
The subject unit was designated Squadron 227 (01d Bronco Unit) by Hq LGAF,

On 15th Oct 1944 Squadron 227 was called to actively engaped
in military operations. Elements of the unit proceeded to Baler, bay to
unload weapons and equipment sent by submarine, Najor Lapham stated he
met Gubrian and his men and that they had received arms enocuzh to fully
equip Squadron 227, Capt., Marinas also stated when they arrived st Baler
they had received sufficient erme for all their men,

On 13 Dec. 1944 this unit was glven its field order from Hq,
LGAF (Incl 2) to operate in the vieinity of San Jose, liueva Eeija with
Capt Gubrian as overall commander, On 4 Jan 1945 Squadron 227 with other
guerrilla units attac the Japanese forces at Carranglan, Nveva Eclja.
These attacks were made to disorganized the Japanese parrisons in this

area.

one of the moat efficient units he had been in contact with, He
stated that Squadron 227 was very much responsible for disorganising
enemy forces in the area of Carranglan, Nuewva Eclja.

5',._%4 Capt. Abdon Agquino (recognized) commanding the 103rd Squadron

This unit then was attached as of squadron strength to the
20th Infantry, 6th Div, It again engaged the Japanese at Munoz, Nueva
Eeija. '

Capt Artemio Castaneds & company commander of Squadrom 403
LGAF (recognismed) stated that squadrom 227 was one of the most active
guerrilla units in LOAF, Capt Pimentel Bn, commarder 3rd Bn, lst Tarlac
Regiment ECLGA (recognised) stated the"Philippine Scout" squadron (Squadron
227) was one of the most well known squadroms throughout central Luson,
He stated its activities against the Japanese at Carranglan and Munoz,
Nueva Ecija were well known to many guerrilla units, A commendation and
the ability of this squadron was sent to Gabrian by Lt Col C, J, Van Sickle

commanding the 20th Inf, 6th Div, (Inel 3),

-2-‘
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Subsequent attachments of Squadron 227 were to the 25th Div,
37th Div and the 32nd Div,

. ol Due to the fact that attachment papers of this unit had
previously been submitted to Sixth Army Hq. for recognition, the investi~
gating team, very carefully interrogated the members of this organization
on their military kmowledge, unit activities, and then respective duties
with this unit. All members interviewed knew their officers and non-
commissioned officer; they had a good knowledge of their assigned duties
and how to carry them out. Known facts have convinced the investipating
team that this organization because of théir former stayus as USAFIE

soldiers, their evidence well orggnized unit, and their Guerrilla
activities in general i tive guerrilla units in LOAF.
This fact is further substantiated by many fecogniszed guerrilla leaders

as well as civilians in the area the unit operated., A statement by Major
Robert B, Lapham (Inc 4) will bear out the evidence presented by this
unit, A statement by Capt., Benigno G. Tebora (Inecl 5) alse indicates
the rencjin of this unit throughout Nuveva Eeija; the loyalty and integrity
of the men, and officers who commanded this organization is beyond question,

¢, The unit was maintained satisfactorily in the field, This
organization previous to 1ta active engapement against the enemy trained
and prepared ltself as a combat squadron, The CO and his men also were
used as intelligence apents Mlln‘ﬁ important and accurate information
to IGAF Hgq, After its active duty orders from LGAF Hg, (Inc 2) the unit
operated in the field continously as a combat organization from 3 Oct 1944
until its members returned to military control.

ds Activities of the unit contributed materially to the defeat
of the enemy, Through the action of Squad 227, the enemy in the area of
Carranglan became disorganised and were unable to reinforee other Japanese
troops which were engaged in action agalnst ths liberating forces,

Intellipgence work gathered by men in this squadron wae sent
out through IGAF Hq. to Australia became very significant in future action
against the enemy. The attachment of thls unit with American forces at
Wunoz, Nueva Ecija materially helped the liberating forces to drive the
Japaness north,

e. A definite organization was established, The subject unit's
leaders were all military men (Philippine Scouts) and they esteblished a
well organized unit patterned along & strietly military line,

f. Unit showed satisfactory continuity of activity and organiza-
tion, This organization consists of soldiers who are at present or former-
ly were Philippine Scouts sngaged in active military operations during the
liberation and occupation. The mejority of ite members had many years
previous military experience,

g+ No useful purpose will be accomplished by further investiga-

tion of this unit. All members are worthy of recognition, It is recommended

by the investigating officers that casualties be favorably comsidered for

recognition,

> 5w
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h. This unit does not appear to have any political affiliations
or aspirations,

RECOMMENDATIONS

It 1s recommended that 152 men of #ke Sq@227 (014 Bronco Unit)
be favorably comsidered for recogmition. 1 Nov 1944 to 20 Feb 1945 when
the members reported back to military control.

EMETE H, NEUBAUER IEON J. SONDERS
1st Lt CAC 1st Lt CAC
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Report on the Rei-Zar Regiment
Barrioffs Manila Division, USFIP.

15 August 1947

1, 1st It Kemneth H, Neubauer examined the unit files and previous
reports of investigation to determine whether the Rei-Zar Regiment, Barrion's
Mgmila Division, USFIP, deserves revision of its present dates of recogni-
tion, The Rei-Zar Regiment was recognised in a stremgth of 453 officers

and men, The Rei-Zar Regiment comsists of the following reorganised nom-
standard Philippine Army Units,

Rel-Zar Regiment Strength  Date Recogmiszed Auth, & date Auth.
Regt. Hq, 13 1 Jun 1945 Hq APPAC, 14 Jul 1945
5 9 Jun 1945 Hq AFWESPAC, 19 Jul 45
st Battalion
Bn Hq, 29 5 Peb 1945 Hq AFPAC, 14 Jul 1945
ﬂﬂl LIy % ;] ] " "
Gﬂ !‘Bl‘ 1“1 ] H n n
Co "C" 91 m "o "
Co "D" 118 " $ .. "

2, HISTORY: (See attached umit file)

3» FINDINGS: a, The fullaling persons were interviewed and their
atatements are reflected in the findings.

Maj C., H, Wentzell Guerrilla Aff Div,
Capt E, R, Curtis " N 5N
Col Pedro Viudez \ Bulacan Military Ares

b, The organization known as the Rei-Zar Regiment wes organized
within the jurisdietion of the Manila Distriet during 1942, by Capt Barker
with authority of Col Thorpe, After the capture of Barker in Jan 1943, =
Capt Patriclo Gonsales, (Pat Gatson) commanded the Manila District (ID)
and he subsequently designated the subject unit as _the General Service
Troops, W, under the command of Mohammed Nassao, in 1943 Maj Ramsey assumed
command of the MD and the subject unit wae incorporated into the ECLGA as
the general service Troops, ¥, ECLOA. In May 1944 Major Ramsey designated

his units mumerically and the GST, ECLOA became the 6lst Infantry Regiment,
MD, ECLGA, .

. The report of revision of the Rei-Zar Regiment is primarily conecerned
with the activities of the unit as an organization of Barrion's Manila
Pivision, but a history of the unit from its inception is related to give
a clear indication of ite accomplishments during the occupation,
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Various histories have been submitted by Col Mobhammed on the
activities of the Rei-Zar Pegiments two of them have been selected with
excerpts from each used to indicate the wide variances of the claims of

. the unit during the occupation. Both histories have been prepared by Col
Mohammed but at different intervals of time, :

19422 It is noted that in the history attached as inclosure 1 there
are no activities claimed during the year 1942. The second and later
histery, attached as inclosure 2, states that the unit engaged in esplone
age and propaganda activities; a claim of 600 members by the unit during
1942 is also put forth in this history., Insufficient evidence has been
presented to sustain this claim of 600 active members during 1942, Moham-
med has stated in his ea®lier history that as late as November 1943 the
unit was disorganized., (Incl 1) The facts presented indicate an inactive
organization did exist, which was composed of men who had a hatred for
the enemy, but who were without definite aims or leadership., The continuous
change of command during 1942 resulted in haphazard methods of organization
with no over-all command to set up a poliey that could be adhered to, The
¢laim by the unit that it engaged in propaganda activity is not supported
by sufficlent evidence, A claim of conducting sabotage operstions is
without foundation, as the unit did not exist as a cohesive guerrilla or-
ganisation, J

mﬁl The re-designation of the unit to the Gereral Ssrviee Troops,

W, ECLOA was accorded in October 1943, with the unit now under the comtrol
of Major Ramsey:s Activities claimed in the unit history {Inel 2) for the
year 1943 are vagues Mohammed expounds the fact,that because of the cap-
ture of Capt Barker and a ome Alejandro Santos, tlje Manile District, ECIGA,
was payalysedj he further states that the relentless Japanese campaign to
eradicate the organization caused it to "lie-low"., After bemcaning the
faet that the umnit had to 1ie-low, that it was being continuelly harrassed
by the Japanese, and its leaders captured, Mohammed contradicts himself by
saying that the unit had a coninual increase in strength so that it now con-
tained six battalions, The facts related on the difficulties in the suce
cessful functioning of the:organisation indicates that the unit was ineffec=
tive in operations against the Japanese, and that the strength claimed by
Mohammed 13 highly exsggerated. Further evidence to substantiate the fact
that no such organization existed in 1943 is made by Mohammed in his pre-
vious unit history (Incl 1 in which he states,...."When I came into the
foothills by November 1943, I found the so called organization "GST" a
bunch of civilians with several ep-servicefen§ of the USAFFE who were
grouped together bounded by sentiments, hdtred sgeinst the Japanese, and
principals they fought for." There is nothing stated by Mohammed in this
excerpt which indicates that an organization of any size, let alone six
battalions, ever existed in 1943, '

19443 Jan-Sep: During July 1944 the subject unit was re-named the 6l1st
Infantry Regiment, WD, ECLGA, MoNammed claims that the organization was
actively engaged in sabotage and intelligence activities during 1944 No
specific incidentes have been related in which sabotage was effectively
carried out against the enemy. Propaganda and Intelligence activities
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from January 1944 to September 1944 were not of such & mature to warrant
guerrilla recognition, Three investigations on various elements of Barrion's
Manila Division, (Rei-Zar included) conducted over a period of two years,

by officers of this branch, has indicated that the activities of the orga-
mization were not of sueh a nature to warrant guerrilla recognition,

! Sometime in July 1944, Col Barrion through differences
with Major Ramsey severed his connection with the ECLGA and proceeded to
organize a unit of his own, During Sep 194, Mohammed was influenced by
Barrion to break connections with the ECIGA and to become a member of
Barrion's Manila Division. When Mohammed broke with the ECLBA, he took
with him the 61lst Infantry Regiment which he re-named the Rei-Zar Regiment..
Nohammed makes the claim that sbout 700 members of the 6lst Infantry Regi-
ment were taken by him into Barrion's Manila Division, Thig claim has been
refuted as it has been established that the mumber of acti¥® members that
Mohammed brought into Barrion's Division wes approximately 120 (Incl 3, Page 9).
During September 1944 Barrion and Mohammed proceeded to Mindoro to contact
It Cndr Rowe in order to obtain equipment for their unit. -Rowe gave Barrion
& radio set and a few arms and directed him to gather intelligence which in
turn would be sent to Rowe's advance SWPA Hq in Mindore, On 5 October 1944
the Rel-Zar Regiment consisting of 120 men proceeded to Bayambong, Wovaliches,
Rizal and there established ite headquarters, From this headqusrters intel-

_ligenece reports were sent to Cmdr Rowe at his Hqe in Mindoro. Some time in
December 1944, due to a previous mistake in assignment, Lt Cmir Rowe directed

Barrion to turn his radio set over to Ramsey's ECIOA, During the period
that the Rei-Zar Regiment was without a radio, contact was made with Col
Santos who commanded the BMA and intelligence reports were sent to Rowe
through Cel Santos' radio., This has been confirmed by Cmdr Rowe; Col Santos
and Col Viudez of the BMA, In December 1944 Col Santos gave Barrion a radio
for the purpose of sending intelligence reports to the advance SWPA Hq in
Mindere, During the latter part of December and the first part of January
1945 Barrion's unit was ordered to construct an airfield at Naglingue,
Novaliche . 24 or gomplished to facllitate the landing of light
limm:% th Attebted ie team leaders report by Capt Huebsch,
formerly of this branch,

The duties of the 120 men concerned for revision were 1y
intelligence, guarding the radio station, construction of the airfield at
Naglingue, courier duty and conducting raids against the Japanese in the
area of Balintawak and Baesa, Calococan, Rizal, '

From interviewe with personscontacted and mentioned in the report,
it has been determined that from 5 October 1944, 120 men of the Rei-Zar
Regiment were maintained in the field as a guerrilla organization in opposi-
tion to the enemy. .

It is noteworthy that this organization has no gradual inerease

‘in strength from October 1944 to February 1945, which was the month of

attachment to the U.,5, Forces. The unlt strength remained constant until
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i‘-‘hﬂl.nry 1945 when reeriilting stations were opened in Manila, with the

ﬂm}uﬂ expansion of the organization into hundreds of men (Inel 3,
3

¢s Major C, H, Wentzell and Capt E, R, Curtis of this branch,
who reinvestigated Barrion's Manils Division, have recommended that 120
members of the Rel-Zar Regiment, Barrion's In.'uﬂl Division, have their
dates of recognition revised back to 5 October 1944. It is further re-
commended by Maj Wentsell and Capt Curtis that Col Dominmador Barilea
on) be mt)h:deﬁ in the roster recommended for revision of dates
1 3, Page 10

ds A casualty roster of Barrion's Manila Division has been sube-
dthd to the Casualty Section. This roster has been favorably acted upen.
Ho further casualty recognition is recommended,

e. Col Dominador Barilea (Barrion) has requested that his name
be excluded from the recommended roster for revision.

L. FOLITICAL ASPECTS: Col !u'rinn.in executive officer of CGeneral
Peralta, head of the Philippine Veterans Administration.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS: (1) It is recommended that the present recognie
tion dates of the Rei-Zar Regiment, Barrion's Manila Division, be revised
as follows: :

Srength Date
120 | 5 October 1944
(2) It is recommmnded that Col Dominader Barilea (Barrion) be

included in the roster of the revised members of the Rel-Zar Regiment,
Barrfons's Manils Division,

KENNETH H, NEUBAUER
1st Lt CAC
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) Report on Signal Company, 1st Regular Manila Division

24 July 1947

1, Lt Kenneth H, Neubauer investigated the unit file of the Signal
Cos, 18t Regular Manila Division, to determine whether that unit deserves
revision of its present recognition date, The Signal Company, lst Regular
Manila Division was recognised by letter, Headquarters USAFFE, FEPA 370,64,
dated 1 April 1945, The effective date of recognitidn was 9 April 1945.

2, HISTORY: (See attached unit file)
$. FINDINGS:

a, The Signal Company, 1st Regular Manila Division, Manila was
commanded by one Vicente O, Cabarrubias, The subject unit was part of the
purported 1st Regular Manila Division which was under the command of a
eertain Dominpe T, Jacinto,

No unit file is in existence concerning activities of the Signal

- Company, but it is apparent that the history of the 1st Regular Manila

Division, which the Signal Company is part of is conclusive evidence of the
activities of the subject organization during the occupation, -

The 1st Regular Manila Division was investigated by lst Lt Leo S,
Wortman Jr,, formerly of the Guerrilla Affdirs Division, Lt Wortman did
not faverably consider the unit for recognition, From the report of .inves-
tigation by Lt Wortman it is apparent that this unit was a "1945 guerrilla
organization, The 1lst Regular Division claims that 1t recruited 10 companies
in 1945, This statement in itself indicates the type of organization it is,
It 18 evident that wery few of the members of the unit were attached to the
U. 8. forces, This is substantiated by the faect that the organization's
commanding officer had the oppurtunity to attach his unit te the 1st Cavalry
Division in late February 1945 but failed to de 8o, His reason for not
attaching the unit to the lst Cavalry Division was as follows: "we did nmot
know what the status of our men would be", Apparently the commanding officer
was more interested im the status of his men as guerrillas than driving the

enemy from the city of Manila,

A report to Gen Stiverg from Col Tayler has this to aay about the
1st Regular Manils Division,,... "To my personal knowledge the lst Regular
Manila Division i= a "Johnny come Lately" organization.... there were a
number of recruiting stations in North Manila, recruiting for this divisien,
and I am sure that was not at all a geing concern upon our entry into Manila,
"(Ine. 1) It is apparent that the Signal Company, & unit of this Division
was as inactive before attachment as the rest of the organization,

The unit questionaire states that the organization was completely
unarmed, A claim of espionage and sabotage activity is made by the unit
for the years of 1944, This statement is e direct contradiction to the
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original statement that the unit was formed in February 1945, No known
results have been derived from the alleged intelligence activities claimed.

Evidence indicates that the Signal Company, 1lst Regular HManila
Division had itself attached to the U.S, liberating forces and were sub-
sequently recognized; previous to this time no such unit existed, This is
concurred in by Lt Wortman's previous investigation of the Manila Division.

4. POLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any political
affiliations or aspirations.
5, RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the present recognition

of the Signal Co., 1lst Regular Manila Division, be not revised,
{

KENNETH H. HEUBAUER
1st Lt CAC
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1. 1lst Lt Kemneth H, Neubauver and 2nd Lt William MacMillan proceeded

to Pantabagan, Nueva Ecija during March 1947 to investigate the Conversion
Guerrilla Unit (Independent),

2, ALIRGED HISTORY: (See attached unit file)
3. FINDINGS:

a, Ths following persons were interviewed and thelr statements
reflected in the findings:

Maj Robert B, Lapham CO, LGAF

2nd Lt Ismael Linsangan CO, Conversion Guer Unit
1st Sgt Patricio Genaro Unit Member

T/8gt Isidro Castro " "

8/Sgt Tibureio Dumlao " "

Cpl Alberto Angelo . o

b, Record of service was not substantiated by sufficient accep-
table evidence, This organisation under the command of Ismael Linsangan
consists of men who were members of many other guerrilla units, i.e.,
squadron 303, 303-A, 101, 268, 1, ete. Lt. Linsangan himself was a member
of four different guerrilla unite at the same time, In addition to his
alleged guerrilla sctivity he was employed by the Japanese government as.
the principal teacher of Pantabangan Nueva Ecija School. The investigating
officers believed that it was impossible for Ismael Linsangan to be active
in three other organizations and still command his own unit successfully.
Linsangan claims to be a 2nd Lt on his unit roster, A letter writien by
Col Stanly R, Larsen CO, 35th Inf, dated 28 April 1945 is addressed to
M/Sgt Linsangan (Incl 1), Col Larsen also congratulates him on his recent
promotion which was from Cpl to M/Bgt., Linsangan himself admits that he
was carried as a corporal with duties of a clerk until his promotion to
M/Sgt, On his guerrilla questionare (Incl 2) Linsagan swears he was pro-
moted to 1lst Lt on the 15 March 1945. An affidavit signed by Major Thomas
Elyattingby M.C, dated 23 March 1945 (Incl 3) is made out to Cpl Ismael P,
Linsangan., In other words there are three conflicting statements concerning
the rank of the commanding Officer of thies unit, It is apparent this man
was a member of some organization as an enlisted man, but it is doubtful
he was the commanding officer of the Conversion Guerrilla Unit.,

Members of the unit interviewed by the investigating team did not
know what their specific duties were, Patriclo Genaro who claimed to be
1st Sgt of the Conversion Cuerrilla Unit is carried on the roster as squad
leader with the rank of Sgt, There is no lst Sgt carried on the unit roster.
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Alberto Angelo claimed to be the unit clerk; Linsangan the CO stated he

did all ths clerical work for his organization, He puts forth this claim

in that he had the knowledge in this line, The unit was a passive organi-
sation throughout the occupation,  Members of the unit stated there was

no Japanese garrison closer than Rizal, Nueva Boija. The inacessability.

to this area and lack of enemy activity made it ideal for guerrilla units

to "take a rest", Affidavits in the unit file by American officers are
devoid of evidence that this unit was ever attached to the liberating forces,
Other than Cpl Linsangan it is apparent no other men from the organization
were ever attached to American forces or participated as active guerrillas
during the liberation. The lack of sufficient evidence to show the existence
of a guerrilla organization, the various activities of the unit commander
with many different guurrllil'unitl, in addition to being employed by the
Japansse; and “the differences of statements of members interviewed,it is
apparent that this unit was not maintained as a bonafide guerrilla organi-
sation, -

¢; The unit was not maintained satisfactorily in the field, This
is ascertained by the complete lack of activity by the Japanese cccupation
forces in the area, Since the Japanese very seldom patrolled this area,
members lived at home,

d. Lntivitililﬁiﬂ not contribute materially to the eventual
defeat of the enemy, 1 members pursued their eivilian occupations and
1ived at home,

e, Performance of the unit did not indicate adequate control by
its commanding officer, Ismael Linsangan was a menmber of three other
guerrillia units at the same time he acted as C.0., of the Conversion Cusr-
rilla unit, It was impossible to control his unit and to be active with
three other guerrilla units.

f. Unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity as the
commanding officer as well as subordinates could not show any achievment
or submit supporting evidence of any accomplishments during the ocoupatien,
Maj. Robert B, Lapham,commanding officer of LGAF stated that thiz unit was
one of various little units whose members had originally had been part of
the larger guerrilla organizations, Due to differences between the various
guerrilla leaders they formed their own small organizations, By doing this
they reduced their effectivencss as an active guerrilla unit,

g+ Members of this unit did not devote their full effort to
guerrilla activities, They all lived at home and supported their families
by their eivilian pursuitas,

h, No useful purpose will be accomplished by further investiga-
tion of this unit, No members are worthy of recognition, and the unit
guffered no casualties, {
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4+ POLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any politi-
cal affiliations or aspirationms,

5. RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that other than the two
members previously recognised, the Conversion Guerrilla Unit, consisting
of 40 men be not favorably considered for recognition.

WILLIAM D. MacMILLAN KENNETH H, NEUBAUER
2nd Lt Inf

1st Lt CAC
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small organization, Capt Parungao stated that he personally knew these men

' le 1st Lieutemants K. H, Neubauer and B, Sta. Romana proceeded to

Gablao, Nuewa Fedja on 18 February 1947, to investigate the Independent
Guerriila Outfit wnder the comand of Gapt F, Paruneac.

2. ALLEGED HISTORY: ( mo history of this unit )

3 t 8+ The following persons were interviewed and their '
statements in the findings;

Pablo Aligado =« =< ==« Nayor of Cablao, Nueva Ecija
Harcelo Crespo * = == === Chief of Police, Cablao, NE
Capt Pe Parungao « = = = = « « 00 Independent Guerrilla Outfit
Reynaldo Julg == e wwwelstlt ExO . 528 "
leonardo Munsayac “wweow-e2nd 1t " ] "
Salvador Ortis -------ifh,dh " " "
Aurelio Munsayae LA " W "
Juan Talens —#----nﬁs n L W
mm iiﬁ--—---mgt L n .'.
Jose Franeiseo “oee=e- St i, .
Pedro dels Crus - == weee Pfe L " n
hnj&lﬁh&ﬁﬂh - e owow == w Pyvh L B L]
Jose G, Ortizs Luds =« « =« o « « Pyt . L

b, Retord of service was not substantisted by sufficient aao;ptnhh
evidence, Felipe Parungao, the purported (0 of the subjeet unit was alse
recognized as 1st Lt with the General Servies Troops (GST), East Centpal

claim of having been engaged in intelligense, sabotage, or propagands actie
vities, Capt Parungao was questioned on how he sounld have been astiwe with
the General Servise Troops (GST) FOLGA, and simltaneously be able to com-
mand the Independent Guerrilla Outfit, Parungao stated that from time to

‘time he would return to Cabiao to inform his wnit of the latest guerrille
activities as learned from @GsT, ECLGA,

When questioned on why so many men held high ratings that !.ﬁ-nuuh-.

and that he had given them these ratings because of their friendship, The
nn-mmmlutthuhlchormduhﬁmnunpuiﬂndnﬂntm

- those of a lower grade,

lack of arme indicates the unit offered 1ittle resistance to the Japas
nese forces, It is evident that an efficient organizaetion was not maine

'm,mmitdﬁmmmm;thmmﬁu'ﬂ.

¢, The unit war not maintained satisfactorily in the field in oppoei-
tion to the ecnemy, Many members lived at home and pursued civilian ocoupa-
tions, Some officers were members of. guerrills units other than the Inde-
pendent Guerrilla Outfit, therefore, kmew little of ite alleged activities,
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&, A definite organization was not
te by the unit, The unit had no records teo

E.h-h dates of z:.‘.u enlistments, dates rank mot
_ or of promotions, or any
records which establish it as an organized guerrilla outfit,  Ranks
ize of the command, end were not pro-

of members were excessive for the s
portionate to U S Army or pre-war Hﬁnpﬁumhbi.dﬂrmuun.
Members of the unit did not know the duties of thelr grades or ranks,

e, Performance of the unit did not indisate adequate contrel by ite

commanding officer because of ficers and men on the roster were members of
tione, Capt Parungao could not effectively contrel

other guerrilla organisa
‘his unit begsause of his extended periods of absence from it,

£, The unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity and orga-

nisation because the commanding offiscer as well as subordinate of'ficers cannot
show evidence of any accomplishments during the oceupation, Members of the

unit had no idea of what their duties were, or towhom to report with informa-

Chief of Police Marcelo @respo stated that Capt Parungeo was a meme

Ce
of another guerrilla organization, and that he had not heard of the Ine
Guerrilla Outfit., The Mayor of Gabiao, Pable Aligado stated that

had not heard of Capt Parungeo or of his unit during the ocoupation.

h, HNe useful purpose wull be acecomplished by further investigation of
this unit, There are no members worthy of recognition and there were no

casualty sustained by this wmit,
fys This unit does not appear to have any politi-

eal affilistions or aspiratiens,
It is recomendedthat the Independent Guerrilla

5e %l
Outfit consisting men be not favorably considered for recogmitlien,

]

KENNETH H, NEUBAUER ELISEO STA, ROMANA
Lst Lt Inf
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Report on Allas Intelligence Unit

21 July 1947

1, lst Lt Kenneth H, Neubauver investigated the unit file of the
4llas Intelligence Unit, to determine whether or not the recognized
portion of the Allas Intelligence Unit deserves revision of its present
recognition date. The Allas Intelligence unit was recognized by letter,

Hqs USAFFE, FEPA 370,64 dated 1 April 194 s in the strength of 30 officers
and men, The effective date ar recognition was 25 .June 1945,

2, HISTORY: (see attached unit file)
3. FINDINGS s

&+ The subject unit was organized by CIPRIANO S. ALLAS in the
later part of August 1942 by the alleged authority of Capt C, J, Cushing,
The organization was initially a unit in the LGP, A majority of its
members were inducted between the 25 August 1942 and 2 November 1942,

The existence of this unit was shert lived as its commanding officer was
captured in May 1943; the unit subsequently disintegrated, This has been
admitted by Allas in a letter to the Chief of Staff, Army of the Philippines
(Inel 1) dated 22 Dec 1944, After the disintegration of the organization
members joined other guerrilla units, i,e, LGAF, 14th Infantry, VOLCKUANN'g
Guerrillas, and the ANG MGA MAHARLIKA, It is evident that the short period
of time this unit was in existence, (10 months) it could not have not been
a very active unit, Approximately one half the time the orgenization
existed, (4 months) it endeavored to recruit members, If a well organized
unit existed in May 1943, the capture of the CO, Allas, should have made
little difference in the successful functioning of the organization, This

was not the case, No mention of any activities is made by Allas that the
unit was active during the 10 months it existed, .

Allas states that the unit wae subdivided into the following cate-
gories; operations, combat section, and propagenda section. Activities
are nil ag listed under the combat section, The propaganda section was
commanded by onme Lt Cristobel and mo record of its sctivities exist, A

stated previously, there is no evidence that the unit ever operated as an
intelligence unit, during the ocecupation.

After released from prison Allas contacted the Commanding Officer of
the ANG MGA MAHARLIKA, another purported guerrilla umnit. The commanding
officer of the ANB MGA MAHARLIKA, Ferdinand Marcos, assigned Allas as an
intelligence officer in Pangasinan., Allas claims to have been a member
of this unit from his date of release until the 28th of August 1945 (Ine
2 Page 1). Allas was not a member of another guerrilla unit since his
own organization , the Allas Intelligence Unit did not exist, Allas states
that some of the members of his former unit joined him as an intelligence
operatives, This may be true, but these men were now members of the ANG
MGA MAHARLIKA unit, not the Allas Intelligence Unit (Inc 3). A close
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ecrutiny of the roster of the Ang Mga Maharlika unit reveale that many
menbers were also on the rosters of the Allas Intelligence Unit. Following
are examples of these duplications in rosters,

—Allas Int, Unit ~Ang Mgp Waharlikg
Donato Ancheta, 2nd Lt Donato Ancheta, lst Lt, CO, Co "CO
Guloy Constantiane, 2nd Lt Guloy C, 1st Lt "C" Co.

Olavidez Felipe, 3rd Lt Olavidez Felipe, 2nd Lt "C" Co
Rodrigues Vietoriano, M/Sgt Rodriguez, 24 It "C" Co

From the known factas, it is apparent that many members are listed by
both unite, It is improbable that the above listed members could have
actively engaged in guerrilla activities with two guerrilla organizations
at the same time, This information would substantiate the fact that the
Allas Intelligence Unit was an inactive unit, if it at all existed. These
fact further substantiate the existence of collusion between many guerrilla
leaders in submitting as member of their unit men that are already members
of other guerrilla organizations.

With the arrival of the liberating foreces Allas had himself and 29
other men attached to the 25th Division and were subsequently rscognized,
He submitted a roster to the Judge Advocate of the 25th Division and called
his unit the "Allas Intelligence Unit"™, In other words he now revived his
long dead unit (May 1943) and had them recognized, Available evidence
conclusively proves that the Allas Intelligence Unit did not exist from
May 1943, until attached with the 25th Div during the liberation. In its
short existence from Aug 42 to May 43 the unit did not exist as an organized
guerrilla outfit., Insufficient evidence has been presented to warrant the
revision of the organisations present recognition dates,

4s POLITICAL ASFECTS: Cipriano 8, Allas is at present serving as
a senstor in the Congress of the Philippines.

5, RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the present date of
recognition of the Allas Intelligence Unit be not revised.

KENNETH H. NEUBAUER
1st Lt -GAC
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9 August 194%

1st Lt Kenneth H, Neubavar examined the unit file and reports

investigations of the Thorpe Guerrilla Regiment to determine whether
. that unit deserves revision of its present recognition dates, The Thorpe
Guerrilla Regiment consists of the following nom-standard Philippine Army

units,
= S Ihorpe Guerrills Regiment Strength Date Recognized Auth, & dte Auth.
. Eq 20 1 Apr 1945 Hq AFPAC, 20 Aug 45
s o Special Int, Squad 7 1 Apr 1945 " " n
S =
Z 0 1st Battalion
 Ez
! @ Hg 8 1 Jun 1945 Hq AFPAC, 16 Jul 45
2E 8gd "B» i 4 Apr 1945 Hg AFPAC, 17 Jun 45
S z 2nd Battalien 352 12 Apr 1945 Hq AFPAC, 17 Jun 45
:....J Hq Det ! ’ -
Med Pltn - " "
H‘DH | n i
5 I'I!l ] mn n
Sqd "F® " " "
Sqd "C® 110 5 My 1945 Hq AFPAC, 2 Jul 45

2, ALIEGED HISTORY: (See attached unit file) |

3.

FINDINGS: a. The following persoms were interviewed and their

statements are reflected in the findings,

Ma] Robsrt B. Lapham CO, LGAF

Capt Benigno Tabora Jr GAD

let Lt Joseph C, Altman GAD

Capt Federico Sonaco CO Thorpe Guerrilla Regt.
Capt Mariamo 0, Fabro CO lst Bn, subject unit

b. Record of service was substantiated by sufficient acceptable

evidence, Federico Sonaco joimed USAFFE, LGF in August 1942, and served

in the capacity of a courier of Col Thorpe's Headquarters (Ine 1). Col
Thorpe's plan to unite all guerrillas on Luzon and to expand his organiza-
tion as rapidly as conditions warranted, entailed him to commission desarve-
ing members of his unit as squadrom commanders. Sonaco was one of the mem=
bers commissioned as a 3rd Lt on 24 August 1942 (Incl 2), @n 5 October
1942 Sonaco was directed by Thorpe to organize a battalion of guerrillas
which would operate in Southern Pangasinan (Inel 3).
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The expansion of the Thorpe Guerrilla Regiment from its inception
in Bctober 1942 until attachment is grouped into four phases of development.
These four phase will be expanded upom in the subsequent paragraphs,

5 Oct 1942 - 1 May 1‘31: During the latter monthe of 1942 Sonaco's unit
consisted of seven men which were to serve as a mucleus for the expected

. future expansion of the organisation, These seven men participated as

full time guerrillas as their entire efforts were devoted to the guerrillas
movement, The initlal activities of the unit were directed towards securing
arms, ammunition, and supplies of a nature that would be of material value
or future benefit to the organiszation and the guerrilla movement, A letter
addressed to Capt Sonaco verified #he fact that the campaign for equipment

was being carried our successfully by the members of the organization (Incl 4) .

During this period of organization the unit was also active arainst the
Japanese, The unit ambushed members of the Japanese garrison at Carmen
Rosales, Pangasinan in the early parit of 19433 the number of Japanese
engaged by Sonaco'’s men was placed at 18, Sonaco could not state how many
casualties were inflicted on the Japanese as his unit used "hit and run"
tactics; therefore the unit did not know what the result of this action was,
It is noted that there were more than seven persons involved in this ineci-
dent, but the small group of Scnaco's unit were in command of the action;
other individuals that participeted joined the action on the spur of the
moment. : :
Intelligence activities were also engaged in by the unit during
this period. A complete report of the Japanese garrison at Urdaneta,
Pangasinan in relation to strength, weapons, and fortifications was secured.
This report was later submitted to Capt Hunt, who was co-ordinating opera-
tione in the area,

1 Nay 1943 - 1 July 1944: During 1943 the unit directed ita efforts toward
continyed organization, inereasing its strength, training, and activities
against the Japansse, Attached as inclosures 5-6-7-9-10 are reporis of
progress of this mission, The inclosures contain a report of the many new
members, but all did not devote thesir entire efforts toward the guerrilla
movement, In May Sonaco's unit had increased to a total of seventy five
(75) members who were devoting their entire efforts to the guerrilla cause,
Many other individuals listed as members sssisted the organization in its
activities, but only on a part time basis, Activities during 1943 consisted
of ambushing enemy soldiers and convoys, intellizence reports on enemy
movements, reports on strength and disposition of ememy troops, training,
and some mewbers were utilized as guards at the unlts' headquarters to wern
of the approaching enemy (Inel 6-7-8),

Training of the unit was conducted in emall groups throughout the
different barrios in which the unit was actiwe, This training was conducted
by the members of the unit who in addition to training men carried on with
their other specified duties. Intelligence reports were submitted to Sonacols
Hq by his agents who were now scattered throughout most of Pangasinan,
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The strength of the unit as far as fully active memvers were
concerned increased little during the latter months of 1943 and early
1944 due to the Japenese anti-guerrilla campaigns and amnesty declarationsj
however, it is noted that the loyal members of the unit continued to harass
the enemy in as many ways as possible,

1 July 1944 = 31 Japuary 19483 Activities in the latter part of 1944
consisted of sabotage, intelligence, ambushes, searching for supplies,
patrolling, and such other duties that were included in maintaining the
organization, Sonaco's campalgn to inducs people to join the guerrilla
movement was successful te the extent that by July 1944 his organization
had 125 members serving as full time guerrillas, The organization as a
paper unit consisted off hundreds of members, (Inel 11) but these people
made sporadic contributions to the organization and were not devoting their
entire efforts to the cause, It 1s noteworthy that these small contributions
made by many individuals, though it did not gualify them to be classified
as guerrillas, wes of great value to the efforts of the active members of
the unit,

Intelligence reports of the unit were submitted to Capt Hunt who
was under the command of Major Lapham, CO LOAF, (Ime 13 to 15). The
intelligence reports submitted by the unit were of a high caliber as
verified by Hunt (Inel 12)., Capt Hunt had a high regard for Sonacols unit
as is evidenced by a letter sent to Major Lapham, but because of some
misunderstanding and hostile acts, Sonaco's unit was never integrated with
the LGAF (Incl 16).

The unit while inereasing its tempo of training still was actively
engaged against the Japanese as is evidenced by the inereasing number of
ambushes and raids against the enemy. In July 1944 at Bacog, Villasis,
Pangasinan, a group of men from the Thorpe Guerrilla Regiment ambushed
approximately 25 Japsnese soldier in which the familiar tactics of hitting
the enemy and withdrawing was used as in previous:encouters. In the latter
part of 1944 a Japanese machine pgun was captured while engeging the enemy
at Bautista, Pangesinan., Ancther enpgagement with the enemy at the airport
in San Miguel, Tarlac resulted in the capture of two Japanese machine guns
in addition to other equipment, '

When it became evident that the liberatiom of the Philippines by
the United States Forces was an early expectation, the part time guerrillas
within Sonaco's unit clamored to devote thelr entire efforts to the gver-
rilla cause, In January 1545 Sonaco's unit which now numbered 175 active |
guerrillas suddenly became a huge organisation with a strength of over
1600 men, It is noeed that the great majority of these men were unarmed
and up to this time had contributed to the guerrilla movement only on a
part time basis.
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J - ¢ During January 1945 Capt Sonaco contacted
Col Lassetter of the United States Forces, and was informed by Col

Lassetter to await the arrival of the U.S. troocps (Incl 17). Capt Sonaco
requested that his organiszation be attached to the U.5. Forces, but was
advised that a decision on the matter had to be made by a higher headquarters.
While waiting for this decision Sonaco wee advised by Col Lassetter to

supply intelligence reports to the U.S, Hq, that this order was carried

out satisfactorily een be asecertained by two. communicetions from the Hg

U.8. Forces to Capt Sonaco, complimenting him on the accomplishment of the
mission assigned his unit (Imel 18-19).,

In April 1945 Capt Sonaco had a small group of hie. organization
gttached to U.8, units, by 12 April 1945 nearly A00 men were attached;

. subsequent attachments took place until by 1 June 1945 there were 608

members of the Thorpe Guerrilla Regiment serving with the United States
Armed Forces,

. @, The unit was maintained satisfactorily in the field against
the enemy, This has been substantiated by Major Robert B, Lapham, CO, LGAF
who knew Scnaco. Major Lapham stated that Sonaco maintained a unit in the
field, and that there are members in Sonaco's unit worthy for recognition
during the Japaness ocoupation, Further corroboration of the activities
of this unit are made by Capt Benigno Tabora Jr. who hae a persomnel
knowledpe of guerrilla activities in Pangasinan, Capt Tabora stated that
Senaco and his orpganization were active through-out the period that the
Japanese were occupying the country. Lt Joseph C, Altman of this branch,
who investigated a supplementary roster of the Thorpe Cuerrilla Regiment,
stated that from the facts gathered during the investigation, 1t is appa-
rent that Capt Sonaco and an undebermined number of men were active through-

out the Japanese occupation, and should be considered for revision of thelir
present dates of recognition,

d, A definite organisation was established. The authorization
to erganize this unit wae given to Capt Sonaco by Col Thorpe, the direct
representative of Gereral Machrthur, The orgendzation was maintained as
a cohesive militeary umit through-out the occupation.

e, The unit had satisfactory combinuity of activity and organiza-
tion., From the unit's inception in October 1942 it maintained an organiza=
tion with a definite program for 1te anticipated activities, aims, and exe
pansion., The members listed on the roster participated in the guerrilla

movement whele-heartedly and devoted their entire epergies for its continued
exigtence,

£. Activities of the unit materially contributed to the eventual
defeat of the enemy. Intelligence reports by this unit were of excellent

quality and were used by the Liberation Force in action against the enemy.

Destruction of Japanese property, raids,and ambushes against the enemy
were carried out whenever possible, -



DECLASSIFIED

Authority

€+ A casuvalty roster comsisting of 44 listed names has been
submitted by the ;harpu Guerrilla Regiment to the @amualty Section,
Guerrilla Affairs Division, This casualty roster has been favorably
actéd upon.

4+ POLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any
political affiliations or aspirations.

5. HECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the present recosnition
dates of the Thorpe Guerrilla Regiment be revised as follows:
Strenzth  Date
7 5 October 1942
75 ' 1 May 1943
125 : 1 July 1944
175 31 January 1945

KENNETH H., NEUBAUER
1st Lt CAC
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1, 1st Lt Kenneth H, Neubauer and 1st Lt Leon J. Sonder proceeded
to La Paz, Tarlae, to investigate the General Makabulos Memorial USAFFE,
Guerrilla Forces, (Independent),

2, ALLEGED HISTORY: (See attached unit f£ile)

3+ FINDINGS: aThe following persons ere interviewed and their state-
ments are reflected in the {indings: -

Artemio Castaneda Capt, Co Cmdr, Squad 403

Pumentel ﬁ{:u]:;ﬁl?n Cmdr, 3rd Bn, 1lst Tarlac Regt
Leon E, Parungao Maj, CO, Maksbulos Memorial, USAFTE
Cecllis de Guzman ogt. Unit Member

Procapes Miguel Ist It * *

Buenaventura Castro st Lt * *©

Felipe P, Custodio lat Lt » *®

Torribio de la Reyes s I ¢ W

Arcenio Calia T/8gt " "

Bonifacio Dangea 8§/8g6 n 0

Bernzbe Guerrero st g *

Marianco Lagman Pfe s

Florente Rivera 8/8gt " v

Felix Wignel - 8/8gt "

Vietor Tizbong Ffe . =

Cifriono Gabriel Sgt noom

Serrilani Timbang Pvt L

Franeisco Ponidor 8/8gt " »

b, Record of service was not substantiated by sufficient accepta-
ble evidence, This organiszation under Leon Parungao remained absolutely
possitive during the occupation pe#iod, It was not in any sense an orga-
nigsed guerrilla unit as all the members lived at home and supported them-
selves by their civilian occupation. The CO stated his organization was
not active against the enemy during the cccupationj its main function was
to keep up the morale of the people, and to mect as a home guard unit when-
ever other active guerrilla units were not in the area, The members of the
unit lacked arms as whatever arms they had were turned over to other guer-
rilla units, The unit had very little te do as a home guard organization
as the town of La Paz had only one squall (about 12 men) of Japanese soldiers
commanded by a corporal to maintain its occcupation policies, The CO of the
unit state that his organization was disbanded at the time the American |
Forces entered their area which was Jamuary 1945. He also stated hie ,
organization was not attached to any American units, This organization had
no attachment papers, rosters, induction papers, or any affidavits which
would establish them as a guerrilla unit, Members of the unit interviewed

by the investigating team did not know what Bn., ¢ or squad they -
belonged to, They 414 not kmew their officers or what their duties were.
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Officers of the unit interviewed did not know who their men were, who
other officers of the unit were or what specific duties they were to
carry out. Questioning Ma] Parungac about this he stated he had no spe-
¢ific organizational set up and the only reascn there is a roster in the
unit file which conforms to & T/0 is because the United States Army had
requested it when he submitted his unit for recogmition, Due to the lack
of evidence to support guerrilla activities, lack of organization and
activity admitted by the unit CO it clesrly indicates this unit never was
a bona-Tide guerrilla unit and had never opposed the enemy during the
oecupation,

¢, The unit wes not maintained satisfactorily in the field in
opposition to the enemy. The members of the unit lived at home and pure
sued their civilian occupations, Squadron 403 and the lst Tarlac Regt
(ECLGA) recognized guerrilla units operated in this areca and two members
of these units stated that the Makabulos Nemorial unit had not been active
at any time during the occcupation, All members interviewed admitted
living at horeand carrying on with their farming,

d. A definite organization was not established, Members of the
unit had no specific duties assigned to them for the ranks they held,
. The CO Maj Parungec was mayor of lLa Paz and therefors could not devote
his time to guerrilla sctivities as he wes under the eyes of the Japanese
forces. No rosters were kept, neither were dates of enlistment, joining,
promotions or any other affidavits showing a well organized unit.

e, Performance of the unit did not indicate adequats control
by -it8 commending officer, Major Parungac was layor of La Paz and under
Japanese scrutiny so was unable to be very nctive with the unit, Other
of ficers knew very little of the orgamization they were a member of, so
they lacked contrecl of their umits.

f+ Unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity be-
cause the commanding officer es well es his subordinates cannot show any
achievement during the occupation. Capt Artemio Castaneda who was a
company cosmander in Squadron 403 (a recognized guerrilla squad) stated
that Leon Parungao's unit was on inactive organization, He stated they
acted as hone guards end tried to maintain law and order in La Paz and
surrounding barrios when the other active guerrilla units were not pre-
sent. Capt Pimentel, Bn Commander of the 3rd B,, lst Tarlac Regt (ECLGA)
(a recognized regiment) who also kmew of Maj Parungaoc's unit also stated
it was a passive unit, He stated they acted in capacity of home guards
if needed, He also stated that Maj Parunpgao's unit was disbanded in Jan
1945 as they haed no weapons and were of no use to the American Forces,

g+ No useful purpose will be accomplished by further investiga-
tion of this unit, There are no members worthy of recognition; eand a
casualty roster has been submitted.

-
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4. POLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any
political affiliations or aspirations,

5. RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the General Makabulos
Hemorial USAFFE Guerrilla Forces (Independent) comsisting of 520 men
be not favorably comsidered for recognition,

KENRETH H, NEUBAUER . ' - LEON J. SONDERS
1st It CAC

1st Lt CAG
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l. 1st Lt Kenneth H, Neubauer and lst Lt Leon J. Sonders, prurmdu;q
to Ouimba, Nueva Ecija during April 1947 to investigate the supplementary
roster of S ,sdron 206, USAFFE LGAF, '

2, Alleged HISTORY: (See Attached Unit File)

3. FINDINGS:

a. The following persons ore interviewed and their statements
reflected in the findings.

Maj De Leon CO 206 Equadron
20d Lt Jose T, Valmonte S5-2 206

Pvt Florentino sdoncyan Unit Member
Sgt Jose U, Ullip . a

Pvt Petronilo Toribio : "
Pvt Eiguel Calpite . o
Pvt Erveteric Cabrero “ .y
Pyt Norberte OCalpito . "
®pl Rosendo Winor . "
Cpl Marcial Buja e

b. Record of service was not substantiated by suflicient accep-
table eviéence,. This organization under Ma] De Leon has had 247 men pre-
biously recopnized. There is insufficient evidence tha® the thirty Zour
{(34) men on the supplementary roster deserve racogniiion. Im fact it 1s
very probable that this roster of 34 men was simply made up by L%t Velmonte
80 a8 to gain recognition for himsslf, This comelusion was brought about
in questioning the CO, Maj De Leon. He stated that five (5) wmen on this
.8upplementary rogter have slresdy been recognized, Five more were deserters
of the unit to other organizations or siwply were afrsid to be active guer-
rillas, end eight (8) more were killed. These eight include the eaptured,
as Maj De Leon stated that these men never returned so were presumed killed
by the Japansee, This leaves only sixteen (16) men that actually could be
accounted for. Of these sixteen men more were present for the investigation,
Mej De leon's attitude in helping to gain recognition for these wen was one
of indifference., He was notified a week in advance that the contact team
would be there to interview these men. Upon the investigation teams arrival
Maj De Leon had to be sent for to give evidence in bahdf of his men . In
questioning Maj De Leon about the omission of these thirty four (34) men
from the original roster of Squad 206, he stated LGAF Hg, forgot to add
the names, Lt Valmonte stated that the original roster of squad 206 was
lost, and a new one made and these 34 men were overlocked in the new roster,
The unit history states these men were used to round up remnants of Japanese
forces and to render aid to the 20l1st CIC, In other words, these are three
different versions of why these men were not on the original roster.

!
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Hq. AFWESPAC which recognised 247 men of sdnad 206 alse wanted o know
why these men were not inclosed on the originmal roster (see Inel 1).
Questioning Maj De lLeon on why the deserters were carried on the roster
and why they deserted he stated that when it was time _to engage in combat
mmtthmqthumd-aid-dtpguhmhuthﬂbauunhaﬂnt
squad 206, Questioning Lt Valmonte on why these deserters were added to
the roster and why they deserted, he stated the men were tired of waiting
Joined other units that were fighting the Japanese but
n members of squad 206, Sinece there are two conflieting
statements about the deserters being added to the roster, the investigating
officers came to the conclusion Lt Valmonte simply added these names to
gain recognition for a few more men, None of the deserters were present
at the investication so the investigating team could not get their statee
ments. All other members interviewed were from the recognized elements of
squad 206 which indicate the supplementary roster may be a fraud, On
questioning Maj De Leon about the ecasualties on the roster, he became very -
vague, He stated that most of them were captured and presumed killed as
they had not returned to their organization, Casualty rosters wers piven
to the CD., the weeks previously on the initial contact, and had not yet
been filled out which again shows the indifference of these men by the
unit commanding officer. Lt Valmonte knew nothing of the casualties ex-
cept that he had added them to the supplementary roster, From the indiffe-
rence of the commanding officer Maj De Leon towards this roster of his men,
and the conflicting statements of the members interviewed givea a clear
indieation that these men on the supplmentary roster did nothing with the
recognized elements of squadron 206 during the Japaness occupation or
during the liberation period.

¢. The unit (supplementary roster of 34 men) was not maintained
satisfactorily in the field in opposition to the enemy. Members of this
roster already had been killed by the Japanese. Others had deserted which
indicates these men Mad not engaged in any guerrilla activities.

d. A definite organization was not established by this (supple~
mentary roster of 34 men) wnit, Some members of this unit deserted their
organization so can not claim guerrilla activities, Others were captured
or killed which indicates they could not be members of an organization
for any further guerrilla sstivities. '

®s The unit (supplementary roster of 34 men) did not show satis-
factory continuity of activity as the men that had been killed, captured
or deserted, mo longer came under of the commanding officer, No other
embers were present to show of any accomplishments during the occupation
or liberation, .

fs No useful purpose will be accomplished by further investiga-
tion of this t. No members are worthy of recogmition and = camsalty
roster has been submitted.
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4. POLITICAL ASPEO?S; . This unit does
cal affiliations or aspirations,

5. HECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that other than the 247 men
previously recogniszed in Squadron 206 USAFFE LGAF this supplementary roster
consisting of 34 men, be not favorably considered for recognition,

not appesar to have any pﬁliti.-

IEON J. SONDERS KENRETH H, NEUBAUER
1st Lt . CAC I1st Lt CAC
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Report on Morelos Regiment (Independent)

14/ lst Lt Kenneth H Neubauer investigated the unit file, .
réports of investigation, and statements by disinterested indlv-
iduals to determine uhltin- or not the recognized portion of the

| Morelos Regiment (Independent) deserves revision of present re-

cognition dates. The Horelos Regiment was recognized in strength

. of 95% officers and men, by llttli ! Headquarters, AFPAC, dated 22

July 1945, AG 370,64, -ﬂm effec
Hay 1945.

E; HISTORY: (EH.IttIUM unit file,)
3. FINDINGS:

a. The following persons were interviewed and their
statements sre reflected in the findingss

ve dete of recognition was 15

It Pete C Brea:z Guerrilla Affairs Division

b. The subject unit wns organized in September 1942
and was originally commended by Col Nemisio Morales, It was int-
tislly associated with the ECLGA, After the arrest and imprison-
ment of officers of the ECLGA this unit became insetive. (Incl 1,
Page 1) later, acting upon the sdvice of Col Bugh Straughn this
regiment tﬂn:l’,mnd ts affiliations to Marking's Fil-Americen
guerrillas for a more unified commsnd, In 1943 Col Morelos was
captured and later died in prison, The unit again became Adisore
gsnized. Control of the unit psssed %o Pablo Ynchausti who also
waes captured by the Jepemese in August 1943, Te was subséequently
imprisoned until about September 1944, After the capture of ¥Yn-
chausti the unit ceased activities, Contrel of the unit passed
{nto the hands of one Velasco, and the unit began to function %o
some extent., There is no evidence that the organization operated
as a unit during the occupation, This is confirmed by the evidence
that the unit was organised, then ceased to functlion, then organized,
ceased to function agein, and reorganized and functloned to some
extent, Additional information to confirm this belief 1s that
the members of the unit were scattered from Pasay to Baclaran
(Rizal) with one company located at San Leonardo, Fueva Feija. The
commsnding officer had very little contact with his unit, This is
borne out by the fact that he met his subordinate officers only
twice & month, From these facts, it 1s apparent that very little
control existed between officers and men of the unift,

The Morelos Regiment's most important activities con-
gsisted of sending intelligence reperts to MFAT, At the peak of 1ts
sctivities this unit submitted 5-10 maps, and 7-10 pages of intel-
ligence renorts to OHQ MFAT every .two weeks. The reliability of

the information conveyed is questionable, and there 1s no record of

W_—B:litiﬂ aotion as a result of the meps and reports submitted
by the unit, The majority of the unit members are from Pasay and
lived at home. Unit members worked at eivilian occupations, (many
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for the Japanese and Japanese concerns)., The amount of intelli-
gence reports gathered considering the unit's strength (955) does

not indicate a very active participation in guerrilla activities
by the unit members.

There 1s no evidence that this unit ever fought
against the ememy, (Incl 1, Page 2) A Major Vicente Juado, a
member of the subject unit, stateds "It was very difficult to
be active in those days" (occupation period), An intelligence
unit such as this one claims to have been seems to have a gross-
ly exaggerated amount of casualties. The unit claims 43 casual-
ties, broken down into the following categories: one wounded in

'nntiuni five missing in action, two died in line of duty, twenty-
1

five killed in line of duty, ten killed in action. Since the unit
did not engage in any skirullh encounter, or engagement with the
Japanese it seems that the liaE of casunl%ias claimed is not com-
mensurate with the units activities, It is known that many peo-
ple suspeeted of guerrilla activities were incarcerated by the
Japanese, and later died in prison, even though these suspicions
as gunrrIllau were groundless, This does not warrant a person,
¢claiming to have been a guerrilla, to be recognized as sueh in a
casualty status, It is claimed that members of this unit were im-
prisoned in Fort Santiago, but from the basis of the units acti-
vities it seems improbable, It is apparent that eivilians who
were imprisoned during reprisal raids by the Japanese claim guer~-
rilla activity because of this imprisonment. (Inel 1, Page 3)
Others that were executed are claimed to have been kiiled in the
line of duty. (Inel 1, Page 3) It has been claimed by the bene-

. Ticlaries of casualties killed in action that these people were

attached to the 1lth Airborne Division in Cavite, Pasay, and at
Nielson Field, This unit does not claim %to have haan.litaehe& to
the 11th Airborne Division, It i1s believed that some members of
this unit attached themselves to the 1lth Airborne Division and
subsequently were killed in action. Members, claimed to have died
in the line of duty,may have died of many causes, 1.e., malaria,
typhus, malnutrition, typhoid, ete. It is known that such ravages
of nature, and war, do not confine themselves to guerrillas. There
is no blli! for claim that the persons who DIED were guerrillas,
and not civilians added to a casualty roster. (Inel 1, Page 3)

The unit was inith 11y recognized as of 15 May 1945. From the casu-
alty roster submitted it is known that the unit did not suffer any
casualty during the time it was recognized. This indicates s lack
of activity of the unit during the time it should have been at s
peak of mctivity. If this is the case it is strange that so many
of the unit's casualties happened months before the unit was recog-
nized. From the facts presented in regards to the units activities
it is believed if members of the Morelos Regiment became casualties
it was becpuse of their own initiative in attaching themselves to

U.8. units, and not through the attachment of the Morelos Regiment
as a combat unit,

This unit has failed to submit any further evidence
of activities previous to the time it was recognized by the U.S.
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Army. It is felt that the press release dated 27 March 1946
which stated in substance that all recognized guerrilla units
would recelve revision of dates if so warranted, was given wide
enough publieity by press and radio, and that if this unit war-
ranted further recognition thny'wuuid have submitted evidence
substantiating their elaim, It is believed that the recognition
of 955 members of this unit for the actual amount of information

submitted appears to be more than just and adequate for the ser-
vices rendered. :

The recommendation for the revision of one platoon
of this unit was made by Lt Pete C Breaz. He recommended that

- that this platoon be revised to approximately 15 September 1044,

This recommendation was made when the unit was considered a part
of Marking's Fil-Americans, an over-all command. As a unit of an
over-all command it could receive a representative number of men,
Lt Breaz concurs that if each individual member's activities were
taken into consideration and evaluated there is no evidence pre-
gsent to warrant the revision of the unit's recognition dates.

4, POLITICAL ASPRCTS:

This unit has no apparent political affiliationse nor
aspirations. |

5« RECO 1 3

It 1s recommended that the Morelos Regiment (Inﬂeitandant}

Eltnut'fnvurnhly considered for revision of present recognition
ates.

KENNETH H NEUBAUER
lst Lt, CAC



]

DECLASSIFIED

Authority

| |
: Report on the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters
Combat Team

25 July 1947

1, 1st Lt Kenneth H Neubauer investigated the unit files,
i reports of investigation and disinterested persons, to deter-
. mine whether the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team de-~
. serves revision of 1ts present recognition date. The Lipa Guer-
rilla Headquarters Combat Team was recognized by letter, Hq.
USAFFE A 370,64, dated 1 April 1945, The effective date of
rnnllnitiun was 1 April 1945,

2. ALLEGED HISTORY: (See attached unit file.)
31 FIHDIHU‘B :

a. The following persons were interviewed, and their
statements are reflected in the findings:

1st Lt Marion C Allbright Guerrilla Aff Div
2nd Lt Pete C Breasz - " .
2nd Lt Bruce Bromley Jr . " "

2nd Lt Raul De Rivera " i r

b« The Lipa Guerrills Headquarters Combat Team was or-
dered to organize on 19 February 1945, with Horacio L. Ilagen as
the commanding officer. The authority for activation of this
unit was made by memo from Headquarters, Guerrilla Forces, Ta-
?:rtlr City, dated 19 February 1945, by order of General Swing.

Inel 2, Page 1) It was attached for duty with the 1lth Air-
borne D{viliun, and subsequently recognized with the strength
of 89 officers and men. *

¢+ Previous to the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat
Team's activation, 1t's members were part of the Rillo-Neri Unit.
The Rillo-Neri Unit was not favorably considered for recognition
during the initial investigation conducted by Lt Max L Brabson,
formerly of the Guerrilla Affairs Division. A second investiga-
tion condueted by Lts Bruce Bromley Jr, Pete C Breaz, and Raul
De Rivera, of this division, during February 1947, again rendered
an unfavorable decision for recognition. A reconsideration of the
unit was undertaken by Lt Marion C Allbright of this division,
during July 1947, and for the third time the unit was not favor-
ably considered for recognition. The above facts are presented
on the Rillo-Neri Unit, as the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Com-
bat Team, is an integral part of the Rillo-Neri Unit. (Inel 1)

d. The combat company of the Rillo-Neri mnit, (Lipa
Guerrilla Headquariers Combat Team) was organized {n February
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1945, From the unit history it states that the Lipa Guerrilla
llldgll!tlrl Combat Team personnel were from the Hillo-Neri Unit.
(Inel 2, Page 2) 8ince 'the activities of the Rillo-Neri Unit
did not warrant recognition, the members of the combat team,

who were recruited from the various elements of the overall or-
ganization have no basis for raviuin#.

e. MActivities claimed by the Rillo-Nerl Unit which
?lunulgiily would be clalmed by the combat Team are as follows:
Inel

(1) Gathering of arms and ammunition

(2) Bolstering morale of the people

(3) Sabotage, and elimination of Japanese spies
(4) Contributions to needy families

(5). Maintenance of peace and order

(6) Intelligence reports

(7) Patrols

f. The gathering of arms and ammnition has been refuted
by the reports of Iinvestigation by Lts Brabson and Bromley. Lt
Brabson states that practically nore of the men interviewed had
weapons during the occupation. Lts Bromley and Brabson both state

‘in their reports that many of the men deserted the unit because

of its passive sctivities.

g+ Though contributing to the needy families in the area
is a commendable act, i1t cannot be considered guerrilla activity

nor can bolstering the morale of the people be classified as guer-

rills activity., Maintenance of peace =nd order would be classi-
fled as home guard duties.

h. Alleged activities in regard to intelligence, patrols,
and sabotage are not substantiated by sufficient evidence. There
is no record of any positive action taken as a result of this acti-
vity. This claim is further refuted by Cmdr Rowe who states that
guerrillsa organizations in Batangas were very small and of no worth.
It is apparent that since this unit was a passive organization it's
claims are highly exaggerated. :

1. The unit file contains orders, memorandums, ete. from
Ma jor Vanderpool, and Capt Schommer, unnrdinatnra of guerrills
activity in this area. The unit's claim because of these orders
is not substantiated., In many cases such orders were distributed
to many purported guerrilla organizations. Evidence of activity
cannot be claimed simply-by the possession of suech orders. - This
fact i1s further substantisted by the fact that the Rillo-Neri Unit
was not favorably considered by three investigations made by this
Headguarters, _

J« Prom the evidence presented it is apparent that the
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Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team did not exist previous
to its attachment to the 1lth Airborne Division. Until the Lipa
Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team was organized, the members of
the subject unit were from various components of tha Rillo=Neri
Unit. As a component of the Rillo-Neri Unit, insufficient evi-

d;nua has been presented tu warrant any furtﬁur dates of recog-
nition.

4, POLITICAL ASPECTS:

This unit does not appear to have any political affili-
ations or aspirations, .

5, RECOMMENDATIONS:

It 1s recommended that the Lipa Guerrilla Headgquarters

Combat Team be not favorably considered for revision of its pre-
sent date of recognition.

KENNETH H NEUBAUER
lst Lt, CAC
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Report on Reconsideration for Revision of Dates of Re-
cognition of the Lipa Guerrills Headquarters Combat Team,

19 November 1947
1. INTRODUCTIONS

On 19 November 1947 lst Lt EKenneth H Neubauer made a
thor and complete reatudy of the unit file of the Lipa Guer-
rilla dquarters Combat Team. The unit commander was contacted
prier to submitting this report on the subjeet organization.

The subject unit was initially investigated for revision
of dates of recognition by lst Lt Kenneth H Neubauer on 1 August
1947. A report of findings is attached to this report. (Inel 1)

A letter from this headquarters dated 5 August 1947, no-
tified Mr. Horacio Ilagen, Commanding Officer of the Lipa Guerril-
la Headquarters Combat Team of the unfavorable declsion rendered
on the subject unit in regard to revision of dates.

During the latter part of August 1947, Mr. Ilagen visited
this office to request reconsideration of the unravurabla decision

rendered ing revision of dates of the subjeect unit. Mr,
Ilagen at s time presented additional evidence to be used for
any rntur: uqtiun.lhlnh might be taken on the Lipa Guerrills Head-
quarters Combat Team.

On 8 September 1947 & Ibtter requesting reconsideration
was received by this headquarters from Ilagen together with addi-
tional evidence to support Ilagen's claim for revision,

2, ALLEGED HISTORY: (See unit file)

3s ¢ The reinvestigation of the Lipas Guerrilla Head-
!ﬂl!ilrl t Team is primarily concerned with the period 5 March
045 to 1 1 1945 for which there is evidence to attachment to
the 158th and to various elements of the 1lth Airborne Division.
Previous e units purported attachment and throughout the entire

ogcupation period the unit shows insufficient continuity of service
tn'lirrlntilnr revision of recognition dates. (Inel 1, page 2)

8s The Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team was ori-
ginally organized as an integral part of the Rillo-Neri Unit,
As indicated by a previous report of investigation (Inel 1) acti=-
vities of the Rillo-Neri Unit were not of such a nature to warrant
guerrilla reccognition. Of the many orders which concern this unit
it is noted that the organizstion was referred to as the Rillo~

Neri Unit, or Combat Gnn llo=Neri Unit. fiuinl orders
later ulnngnd the name .E' %ﬂ& gillt-ﬂuri Combat 31‘ ompany to ﬂg
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Lipa. Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team; therefore this report
will refer to the subjeet unit as the Lipa Guerrilla Headquar-
ters Combat Team. 58

b, Evidencé recently submitted by Horacio Ilagen which
Guerrilla Affairs Division did not possess at the time of the
initial investigation for revision of dates, indicates that the
Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team was attached to the 158th
RCT, and the 187th RCT, 1lth Airborne Division, prior to its
present official recognition date, 1 April 194%.

¢s As indicated in the previous report of investigation,
the unit claims to have been active from 31 January 1945 through-
out the liberation period. This claim is advanced by the C.0.,
Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team who bases his contention
on orders sent to the CO of the Rillo-Nerl Unit by Major Vander-
pool and Capt Schomer, There i1s ne evidence to substantiate the

'~ elaim that the Combat Company of the Rillo-Neri Unit was the

unit these orders pertained to. Guerrills sctivity cannot be
claimed by the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Company by or-
ders which were sent to the overall Rillo-Neri organization., It
has been determined that the activities of the overall Rille-
Neri Unit were not sufficient in nature to warrant guerrilla re-
cognition during the peried 31 Jan 45 until arrival of the 1llth
AB Div., No évidence has been presented to warrant recognition
of the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team, an integral part
of the Rillo-Neri Unit dur the above perioed.

: d. On 19 Pebruary 1945, a memo from Hq 11lth Airborne
Division; in substance stated that only guerrilla units author-
ized and inducted by Hq 1lth Airborne Divisiom (through Major
Vanderpool) will be recognized, (Par 2, Inecl 2) Following

this order Capt Schomer (U.S. Army Liaison Officer) called a con-
ference of representatives of various guerrilla units in the area
for the purpose of attaching them to United States Army Forces.

On 22 February the Rillo-Neri Unit was told to organize a staff
and one combat company. This Combat Company which at this time
was designated the Rillo-Neri Combat Company ultimately became
the Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team, On 2 March 1945

the roster of the Combat C ny was submitted to Hq 11lth AB Div.,
(Incl 3) It is noted that the roster lists more individusls

than were finally recognized., Subsequent to the submission of
this rogster members of the combat team were attached and utilized
by the U.S8. Forces, but not in the strength listed on this roster.
This accounts for the recognition of only approximately 60 mem-
bers of the unit.

€, On 4 March 1945 an order signed by Major Bleiden

. 8-2, 158th Regimental Combat Team, to the CO 187th Regt, 1lth

Airborne Div., states that certain guerrilla units (Lipa Guerril-
la Hq Combat Team included) pass to the control of the CO 158th
?g:ﬂfni)VOCG 11th Airborne Division, effective 001l 5 March 1945,
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f+ The Lipa Ouerrilla Headquarters Combat Team operated
with the 158th RCT from 5 March to 15 March 1947. Conpat opera-
tions which the unit perticipated in were asm follows: Himalss Gare-
rison at Balayan, Batangasj Mt S8an Piro, Balayan, Batangas; Mt Ttem,
Calatagan, Betangas and mopping up operations in the towns of Ba-
layan and Calaca, Batangas. Thoughthere are no sttachment papers
from officers of the 150th RCT other thsn the original attachment
paper signed by Major Bleiden, it does not appear feasable that
Ilagen could have been alle te name individuals of the various Am-
erican Army Units whom it is known were in charge of these various
operations without having been personally in contact with them,
Further evidence to substantiate the units claim of attachment to
the 158th RCT is Lt Col Vanderpool's letter to this headquarters
in which he states: "The Rillo-Neri Unit, (Lipa Guerrills Headquar-
ters Combat Team) was attached Lo the 158th Regimental Coumbat Team
mhen that organization was operzting under the 1lth Airborne Divi-

sion,.. It later reverted to one of the llth Airborne Regiments."
(Inel 5)

g« On 15 March 1945 the 1ipa Cuerrills Hesdquarters Con-
bat Team was ordered to Cuenca, Batangas, to report to the CO of

the 187th Para-(lider Regt. It was placed under the supervision
of a Lt Parker, Guerrilla Affairs Officer of the 187th Regt and
assigned » um{ur around Mt Dito, San Jose, Batangas., The unit re-
mained under Lt Parkers supervision until the 26th of March 1945,
On 26 Msrch 1945, Major Schomer ordered the unit to report to a

Lt A P MeDonald at Guerrilla Hq, Alitagtag, Batangas and from Ali=-
tagtag the unit proceeded to un& was stationed at Taal, Batangas.
There is no signed attachement paper to conclusively prove that

the unit was attached to the 187th P/G Regt and under the supervi-
sion of It Parker but Ilagen has such an extensive knowledge of-
activities of the 187th P/C Regt and is so specifiec in regards to
dates and areas of actlivities of his unit with the 1lth Airborne
Piv 1t 1s unlikely that the evidence recently submitted 1s of late
manufacture, Lt Col Vanderpool's testimony in corrobaration of
attachment to the 11lth Airborne Division and to various regiments
Wﬂ{! is conclusive enough to support the claimed
attac E the unit to the 158th RCT and 187th Regt previous

to 1ts present recognition date.

he The Lipa Guerrilla Headquarters Combat Team was attached
to various units ofthe 1llth Airborne Divisfon during April, May
June, and July, 1945: since the unit was recognized as of i April

1945 1t is unnecessary to discuss attachmonts and activities after
"the initial date of .recognition,

1. Evidence which is of importance to the unit is the
redesignation of the unit from the Rillo-Neri Unit to the Lipa
Guerrilla Headquarters Corbat Team. On © May 1945, Cuerrilla
Headquarters, 1lth Airborne ‘Divf:l on, officielly redesignated the
Rillo~Yeri Unit to Iips Cuerrilla Headquarters Combat Team. The
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effective date of change of unit designation was 1 April 1945,
The order was signed by A P MeDonald, 1lst Lt CAC, USA, Guerrilla
Coordinator, (Inel 6)

4, 1C OMME ONS ¢

Tt is recommended that the recognized portion of the
Lipa Guerrills Headquarters Combat Team, recognized as of 1 April
1945, have its official date of racngniéiun revised to 5 March

1945,
KENNETH H NUEBAUER

. 6 Inclsi 1st Lt., CAC

| 1 - Revision Report by Lt Neubauer
2 - Memo from 1lth AB Div dtd 19 Feb 45
3 - Roater of Combat Company submitted to 1llth AB Div
4 - Attachment order signed by Major Blelden
5 = Letter from Lt Col Vanderpool
6 = Unit Designation of Lipa Guerrilla Hq Combat Team
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1, 1st Lt, Kenneth H, Neubauer proceeded toc San Fabian, Nueva Ec¢ija
during April 1947 to investigate the Independent Intelligence Section (Ind.).

2, ALIEGED HISTORY3 (See ajtached Unit File)
3. FINDINGS;: 6

as The following persons were interviewed and their statements
reflect in the findings.

Maj. Robert B. Laphan O, LGAF

b, Record of service ual not substantiated by sufficient accep-
table evidence, Upon the arrival of the investigating team, the present
commander of the unit (1lst Sgt Paulino Baltazar)nor any other members of
the unit were not present for the investigation, Contact and notification
of the investigation had been given eight days previous %o the actual
investigation,

Loeal residents of the community stated that most of these men
were in various parts of the Philippine Islands at the present time, but

they were of the opinion that eight days was sufficient time to assemble
some members of the unit together for an investigati on,

It is apparent that the indifference of the leaders of the unit
to get their men together would indicate that this unit never existed,
Activities enumerated in the wmit file indicate that if this organization
ever existed it acted as a homeguard group, From the activities listed
in the wnit file it is evident the unit never engaged the Japanese in
combat, It is apparent a small independent orpganization such as this
would be ineffective due to the fact they had no higher headquarters to
transmit their information. This is further evidenced by the fact that
the organisation claims existence in an area completely dominated by the
LGAF,

The application for recognition was received after 15 March 1946
(Incl, 1). Why the commanding officer failed to submit his application
for recognition previous to the deadline date is unknown, Failure to comply
with the deadline date is in itself sufficient to warrant an unfavorable
decision regarding this organizatiom.

The lack of activities of this unit during the occupation and the
failure of the unit to be present for the investigation is an indication
that the organization never existed as a boma-fide guerrilla organization.
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Haj, Robert B, Lapham stated be had resided in Santo Domingo,
Nueva Ecija for some weeks during the Japanese occupation (of which San
Fabian is a barrio) and he had never heard of this unit, The unit was
not maintained satisfactorily in the field, This organization claims to
be an intellipgence section, but all members lived at home and pursued the
elvilian occupations, Intelligence activities were carried on sporadically.
The organizational history states that members were placed in the barrios
surrounding San Fabian to see that the local population gave as little aid
as possible to the enemy,

d. Activities of the unit did not contribute materially to the
eventual defeat of the enemy, Unit members lived at home and pursued their
eivilian occupations. Therefore, they failed to be actively engage against

the enemy.

e, HNo useful purpose will be accomplished by further investiga-
tion of this unit, No members are worthy of recognition and the umit
suffered no casualties,

4. POLITICAL ASPECTS:
This unit does not appear to have any political affiliations or

' aspirations,

5, EECOMENDATIONS:

It 18 recommended that the Independent Intelligence Section
(Independent), consiglsting of 43 members be not faverably comsidered
for recognition,

KENNETH H., NEUBAUER
lst It - CAC
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1, 1st Lt Kenneth H, Nuebauer did during May 1947 examine the unit

file of the Gomez Volunteer Corps Col H, Straughn Guerrilla Unit, ECLGA.
No field investigation was deemed necessary,

2. ALIEGED HISTORY: (See attached unit file)
3. TINDINGS:

a. Record of serviece was not substantisted by suffieient accep-
table evidence, The only activity claimed by this unit from its organi-
zation in February 1942 until June 1943 is the location of a number of
arms burried in the Arellano High School, Mamila, Five men were employed
in the attempted location of these arms, In the first instance of gaining
these arms an unknown number were loaded on =2 rigs In the second attempt
to seoure these arms, 16 rifles were leaded on a rig, Discovery of these
arms by Japanese sentries caused the abandonment of the rig and weapons,
Np mention is made of the use of any of the weapons found, ,The only other
activity claimed by this unit was watehing the movements of the Japanese,
This loeation of a few arme and ohserving Japanese movements does not
constitutes guerrilla activity, It is stated in the unit history that the
area of operation of this organization was heavily guarded by the Japanese
which would make puerrilla activities a practical impossibility. In August
1942, Capt Gomesz, the alleged unit C.0. and hie organization were seized
by the Japanese and imprisoned (Inel.l). The pajority of members were
released in February 1943 but did net engaged in puerrilla gctivity (Inel 2).
During the liberation the only accomplishment by Capt Gomez was to lead a
tank unit to an area infested by the enemy. It is apparent this rank unit
could have mocomplished this miesion with out the help of Capt Gomez, It
is the belief of the investigating officer this unit was not an setive
organization. Very little accomplishments could be shown by the unit,

The members had been imprisoned many monthe by the enemy and were afraid
to actively engage in guerrilla activities after their release,

~ bs The unit was not maintained satisfactorily in the field in
oppesition to the ememy, Members of this unit were imprisoned by the
Japanese, Upom their release, they wemt to their homes to "lie low" and
"take a rest¥, It iz apparent this unit never was engaged againat the
Japanese in the field,

¢s Activities did not contribute to the eventual defeat of the
enemy. The only activity claimed is the location of a few rifles and
intelligence woerk, Because of the unit's imprisonment, it is apparent
there was very little activity by this organization, With the arrival
of the American Forces, the only activity claimed is giving directions to
a tank unit on the location of the enemy,



ds Unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity. It
is apparent the activities of the unit were very limited due to the ime-
prisonment of the members, A continuous surviellance by the Japanese

after the release of the members caused this unit to not to emgage in
guerrilla activities,

3e  DOLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any po-
litical affiliations nor asspirations,

be 3 It is recommended that the Gomez Volunteer
Corps, Col H, Straughn Guerrilla Unit, ECLGA, consisting of 12, members
be not favorably considered fer recognition.

T
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& KENNETH H. NEUBAUER
| lst Lt CaC
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Hupters ROTC, Guerrillas

1., 1st Lt Kemneth H. Neubauer procesded to Mandaluyong, Rizal

during Mey 1947 to investigate the Waybunga Unit, Fil-American Hunters,
ROTC Guerrillas,

2, ALIEGED HISTORY: (See attached unit file)
3- !ﬂlmi |

a. The following person was interviewed and his statements are
reflected in the Tindings,

Honorio A. Garcias Tnit C.0.

b. Records of service was not substantiated by guffiecient
evidence. The Maybunga Unit, Fil-American, Hunters ROTC was nothing
more than & group of "home guards® (Incl II) that claim to have rendered
aid to asctive guerrilla units. The alleged activitles engaped in by this
nnit was to gather information on Japanese activities in the barrio of
Maybunga Rizal, to inform residents of thils barrioc about the progress of
the war apainst the enemy, and th bolster the morale of the local populs=
tions,: Capts Honmorio Garcia, the organization's alleged C.0. stated his
unit engaged in these activities on a "part time" besis during the occu-
pation. Their main efforts were directed %o their eivilian occupations,
These slleged activities which could not be proven by any additional sup-
porting evidence do not consist of bona-fide guerrilla sction, Nome of
the members'of the unit were armed therefore, they were at the mercy of
the Japanese garrisons in the area. When Capt Garciz was asked for the
oroginal copies of affidavits in the unit file, he stated they were stolen:
from his home., It secems very strange thet coples of orders and affidavits
from guerrilla lesders should be taken from Garcia's homs, Capt Garcila
was employed by the Japanese government in March 1943 to wrok for the
"Hanila Shinbunsya”, a Japanese propaganda publication. This job was
taken in order to imcrease his "espionage" activities according to Capt
Garcia. It 1s the opinion of the investigating officer this affiliation
with the Japanese aunthorities would decrease Carcia'’s effort in the guerrille
movement since he was under surviellance at all times. It also is a clear
indication he could not devote his entire effort towards the guerrilla
movement. Throo?znt the entire unit history Capt Garcia refers to "I
and "ME® (Incl 1). Appaerently he was the only active member of this unit,
It is apperent to the investigating officer that Capt Garcia is primarily
interested in gaining recogmition for himself, and simply added some names
to a roster to have the semblence of an organization, When asked sbout
attachment to American forces, Garcia said his unit had never been attached
to the liberating forces. No evidence of any type could be submitted to
substantiate the claims of guerrilla actlvity during the liberation.



DECLASSIFIED

|
|

Authority N1 D 8 43078

When guestioned about his affiliation with Funters ROTC he stated that
they had joined the Runters ROTC in January 1944. He also stated that
many men in his unit are in ths composite unit of Funters ROTC. Two
members marked by an "X" (Incl 3), have been recognized with the Miguel
Vir Regiment. Members marked by I "check mark" (Inel 3) are included
in the casualty rosters of Hunters ROTC., When asked about other cy ,alties
of his unit,Garcia stated he did not know if they were on the uunpuﬂitu
roster of Hunters ROTC unit or mot. It is the investigating officers!’
belief with the evidence submitted that this unit is not a guerrilia
organization, but simply a group of civilians that call themselves such,
The activities of the unit do not constitute guerrillsa activities. It
is also apparent the unit C.0, Honorio Gareim is mainly interested in
gaining recognition for himself, Since this unit is a part of Hunters
ROTC a composite unit has already been duly recognized and havs been
compensated for services rendered. ,

¢. Unit was not mainteine3 satisfactorily in the field. The
members of this uwnit lived at their homes in the barrio of Maybunga
and did not engage in activities against the Japanese in the field.

d., Activities did not contribute materially to the eventual
defeat of the enemy. The activities of this unit which conmisted of

propaganda and intelligence work were strictly possive in nature and
does not warrant guerrilla recognition,

e, A definite organization was not established. The C.0, was
employed by the Japanese so was unable to devote his time to guerrilla
activities.

f. Performance of the unit did no indicate adequate control
by its leaders., The commanding officer as an employee of the Japanese
government did not have the opportunity to retain control of his unit,
nor engage in puerrilla activities,

g. Unit did not show satisfactory continuity of activity and
organization. Activities claimed by this unit are not guerrilla activities.
None of the members of the unit were armed,therefore, they could not

gctively engape the Japanese,

4. POLITICAL ASPECTS: This unit does not appear to have any politi-
eal affiliations nor aspirations.

5. RECOMMEWDATIONS: It is recommended that with the exception of
those 3760 members préviously recognized in Wiguel Vir Regiment, HUNTERS
ROTC, that the Maybungs Unit, Fil-American, HUNTERS ROTC Guarrillaa con=
uisting of 35 members be not fnvurublr'ennnidare& for recognition.

KENNETH H, NEUBAUER
1st Lt CAC
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